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- education
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Board Meeting Agenda January 14, 2019

6:00 p.m.

Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036
Fax (760) 956-3338 _
www.encorehighschool.com Board Members: .

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Sites: Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Hesperia Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA Rob Gabler, Board Member
92345 — CLASSROOM F 29 Paula Gharib, Board Member

Riverside
MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street,
Riverside, CA 92501 — CLASSROOM H1

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*
Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

/The Order of Business may be changed without notice: Notice is hereby given that the order of consideration of matters
on this agenda may be changed without prior notice.

Reasonable Limitations May be placed on public testimony: The Governing Board'’s presiding officer reserves the right to
impose reasonable time limits on public testimony to ensure that the agenda is completed. For any person requiring a
translator, this time will be doubled to account for translation time.

Special Presentation may be made: Notice is hereby given that, consistent with the requirements of the Bagley-Keene
Open Meeting Act, special presentations not mentioned in the agenda may be made at this meeting. However, any such
presentation will be for information only.

Reasonable Accommodation for any individual with a Disability: Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, any
individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or to participate in this meeting of the
Governing board may request assistance by contacting the EEC (760) 949-2036.

Public Documents relating to Open Session Agenda items are available for review by the public at the Reception Desk
at Encore Education Corporation’s Executive office or on the internet at www.encorehighschool.com. For more
information concerning this agenda, please contact EEC (760) 949-2036.
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1.0 CALLTO ORDER. The meeting was called to order at (time).

2.0 OPEN GENERAL SESSION

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

ROLL CALL
Lenny Esposito

Absent
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Kelly Ahmed

Suzanne Cherry
Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller
Kathy Nielsen

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
MOTION: Second: Vote:
ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT

Lenny Esposito
Suzanne Cherry
Kelly Ahmed

Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller*

Kathy Nielsen*

INVITATION TO ADDRESS THE BOARD, OPEN SESSION ITEMS. This is the time and place for the general public to address
the Board of Directors on any matter within jurisdiction of the Board. Comments should be limited to 3 minutes. Unless an item has been
placed on the published agenda in accordance with the Brown Act, there shall be no action taken, nor should there be comments on,
responses to, or discussion of a topic not on the agenda. The Board members may: (1) acknowledge receipt of information/report; (2)
refer to staff with no direction as to action or priority; or (3) refer the matter to the next agenda.

CONSENT ITEMS. It is recommended that the board considers approving a number of agenda items as a consent list. These items are
routine in nature and can be enacted in one motion without further discussion. Consent items may be called up by any member at the
meeting for clarification, discussion, or change.

51
5.2
5.3
54
55
5.6
5.7

STRS,PERS, 403B payments

Monthly Fiscal Report

12.10.18 Board Meeting Minutes

1.4.19 Special Board Meeting Minutes - reflects all changes needed for the salary schedules
CEO Expense Report — Denise Griffin

DOJ Report — Ashlin Barkdull

Monthly Reports — Fiscal and Attendance

INFORMATION ITEMS. There are no actions needed for any of these items. These items are presented for informational

purposes.

6.1 ASB PRESIDENT REPORT — Nathan Zini, ASB President Hesperia
6.2 ASB PRESIDENT REPORT - Sophia Wolfe, ASB President Riverside
6.3 STAFF LIAISON REPORT - Jamie Waggoner, Hesperia

6.4 STAFF LIAISON REPORT — Ramsey Hassen, Riverside

6.5 DEAN OF ACADEMICS REPORT - Cindy Roach and Jessica Meyer
6.6 DEAN OF STUDENTS REPORT - Steve Nutter, Hesperia

6.7 DEAN OF STUDENTS REPORT — John Griffin, Riverside

6.8 CEO Verbal Report — Denise Griffin

6.9 COO Verbal Report — John Griffin



6.10
6.11
6.12
6.13
6.14
6.15
6.16
6.17

Kitchen Lead Report — Zachary Caines

Facilities Manager Report — Curtis Peterson

Theater and Vocal Music Department Chair Report — Hesperia, Michael Nevarez. Riverside, Danielle Pahmeier.
Encore Pirate Questionnaire — Hesperia and Riverside

Encore Parent Advisory Committee Minutes

Encore ASB Letterman Achievements

Parent Advisory Committee Update

Enrollment — Jenna Snowball, Riverside, Lin Ahmed, Hesperia

7.0 ACTION ITEMS.

71 Vote for Approval — ANNUAL AUDIT. Year end June 30, 2018 — Clifton Larson Allen. (Exhibit 7.1)
MOTION: Second: Vote:
ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT

Lenny Esposito
Suzanne Cherry
Kelly Ahmed

Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller*

Kathy Nielsen*

7.2 Vote for Approval — DESERT MOUNTAIN SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA (DM SELPA) - Riverside

and Hesperia Campus — The Desert/Mountain Charter Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) as
authorized by the California State Board of Education assists California charter schools that have
successfully completed the SELPA membership process and have signed this Agreement for Participation
(Agreement) which are deemed Local Education Agencies pursuant to the Education code §47641, in
meeting their obligations to provide special education and related services (each term as defined in Title
20 of the United States Code §1401 and the applicable rules, regulations, and actually or potentially
entitled to Services under applicable state and federal laws and regulations (Student). Charter SELPA
membership also ensures compliance with the LEA member’s obligations under Education Code §
56195, et seq. It is the goal of the Desert/Mountain SELPA that all Students with exceptional needs
within the Charter SELPA receive appropriate special education programs. It is the intent of the Charter
SELPA that special education programs be coordinated and operated in accordance with the governance
structure.

MOTION: Second: Vote:
ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT

Lenny Esposito
Suzanne Cherry
Kelly Ahmed

Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller*

Kathy Nielsen*

8.0 BOARD COMMENTS / REPORTS. The Governing Board will take comments/updates from fellow board members, and the EEC
Executive Administration for future agenda issues.



9.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

Pursuant to Government code section 54957, the Board may adjourn to closed session at any time during the
meeting to discuss staff/student personnel matters, negotiations, litigation, and/or acquisition of land or facilities. The
board will adjourn to closed session in a private area for discussion and may take action on the following closed session
items.

A. Student Discipline appeals. Due to the confidential nature of discipline appeals, all student discipline appeals
take place in closed session.
Parent letter of student #9090 - Riverside
B. Pending Litigation. Due to the confidential nature of any litigation that may come against the corporation,
issues relating specifically to pending legal issues are orders of closed session.
Update on Rodriguez vs Encore.
C. Real Estate Negotiation. In the intent of fair and legal bargaining power, issues related to real estate
negotiations are discussed in closed session.
There are no updates at this time.
D. Employee Actions. Any actions that may take place in regards to employees including disciplinary and corrective
actions are discussed within closed session.
Employee # 649

10.0 RECONVENE AFTER CLOSED SESSION.
At the conclusion of closed session, the Board will reconvene in open session for the purposes of disclosing in
public session any actions taken during closed session regarding the outlined scope of closed session.

11.0 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Second: Vote:

ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT
Lenny Esposito
Suzanne Cherry
Kelly Ahmed
Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller*
Kathy Nielsen*

The meeting adjourned at (time).

The next meeting will be held, Monday, February 11 at 6:00 pm
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January 14, 2019

Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036

Fax: (760) 956-3338
www.encorehighschool.com

Sites:

Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

-

INFO:
STRS, PERS, 403B PAYMENTS.
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January 14, 2019

Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036

Fax: (760) 956-3338
www.encorehighschool.com

Sites:

Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

-

INFO:
MONTHLY FISCAL REPORT
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January 14, 2019

Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036

Fax: (760) 956-3338
www.encorehighschool.com

Sites:

Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

-

INFO:
12.10.18 BOARD MEETING MINUTES

~
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Board Meeting Minutes December 10, 2018

6:00 p.m.

Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036
Fax (760) 956-3338

www.encorehighschool.com Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Sites: Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Hesperia Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Rob Gabler, Board Member
Hesperia, CA 92345 — CLASSROOM F 29 Paula Gharib’ Board Member
Riverside Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street,

1 *
Riverside, CA 92501 — CLASSROOM H1 Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate

/The Order of Business may be changed without notice: Notice is hereby given that the order of consideration of matters
on this agenda may be changed without prior notice.

Reasonable Limitations May be placed on public testimony: The Governing Board'’s presiding officer reserves the right to
impose reasonable time limits on public testimony to ensure that the agenda is completed. For any person requiring a
translator, this time will be doubled to account for translation time.

Special Presentation may be made: Notice is hereby given that, consistent with the requirements of the Bagley-Keene
Open Meeting Act, special presentations not mentioned in the agenda may be made at this meeting. However, any such
presentation will be for information only.

Reasonable Accommodation for any individual with a Disability: Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, any
individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or to participate in this meeting of the
Governing board may request assistance by contacting the EEC (760) 949-2036.

Public Documents relating to Open Session Agenda items are available for review by the public at the Reception Desk
at Encore Education Corporation’s Executive office or on the internet at www.encorehighschool.com. For more
information concerning this agenda, please contact EEC (760) 949-2036.

\_



http://www.encorehighschool.com/

1.0 CALLTO ORDER. The meeting was called to orderat ___6:18____(time).

2.0 OPEN GENERAL SESSION
ROLL CALL Present
Lenny Esposito
Kelly Ahmed
Suzanne Cherry
Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller
Kathy Nielsen
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X X X X X X

x

3.0 APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
MOTION: ___SC Second: __KA__ Vote: ___6/0___
ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT
Lenny Esposito
Suzanne Cherry
Kelly Ahmed
Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller*
Kathy Nielsen*

X X X X X X

x_

4.0 INVITATION TO ADDRESS THE BOARD, OPEN SESSION ITEMS. This is the time and place for the general public to address
the Board of Directors on any matter within jurisdiction of the Board. Comments should be limited to 3 minutes. Unless an item has been
placed on the published agenda in accordance with the Brown Act, there shall be no action taken, nor should there be comments on,
responses to, or discussion of a topic not on the agenda. The Board members may: (1) acknowledge receipt of information/report; (2)
refer to staff with no direction as to action or priority; or (3) refer the matter to the next agenda.

5.0 CONSENT ITEMS. It is recommended that the board considers approving a number of agenda items as a consent list. These items are
routine in nature and can be enacted in one motion without further discussion. Consent items may be called up by any member at the
meeting for clarification, discussion, or change.

51 STRS, PERS, 403b payments - DMS
5.2 DOJ Report — Ashlin Barkdull
5.3 ASB Financial Report — Joanne Pino

MOTION: RG  Second: PG Vote: 6/0

ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT
Lenny Esposito
Suzanne Cherry
Kelly Ahmed
Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller*
Kathy Nielsen*

|><><><><><><

)(_



6.0

7.0

INFORMATION ITEMS. 6.00 ASB Reports-Nathan Zini and Sophia Wolfe

6.1 Staff Liaison reports — Each campus liaison will report on staff relations. — Jamie Waggoner, Hesperia
and Ramsey Hassen, Riverside VERBAL REPORT, NO MATERIALS PROVIDED
Waggoner — staff was worried about the meeting and when it came to head they were calmed by the fact that
it wasn’t’ as bad as they initially thought.

6.2 Dean of Students reports — Each campus Dean will cover overall operations, parent & student meetings
held. — Stephen Nutter, Hesperia and John Griffin, Riverside VERBAL REPORT, NO MATERIALS
PROVIDED

6.3 Dean of Academics reports — Each campus Dean will report on academics — Cynthia Roach, Hesperia

and Jessica Meyer, Riverside VERBAL REPORT, NO MATERIALS PROVIDED
6.4 Special Education Department report — VERBAL REPORT, NO MATERIALS PROVIDED

6.5 Science/Math Department Chair Report — Kristal McMillan, Riverside. Kristine Jarefio is out on leave no
report from Hesperia. — VERBAL REPORT, NO MATERIALS PROVIDED
ACTION ITEMS.

71 Vote for Approval — AUDIT AGREEMENTS WITH CLIFTON LARSON ALLEN. Prepare the organization’s
federal form 990 and applicable state filings. Audit the consolidated financial statements of the
organization, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial positon as of June 30, 2018.
(Exhibit 7.1)

MOTION: RG Second: SC Vote: 6/0

ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT
Lenny Esposito
Suzanne Cherry
Kelly Ahmed
Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller*
Kathy Nielsen*

X

| X X X X X X

7.2 Vote for Approval - TEMPORARY WAGE REDUCTION FOR THE CORPORATION. Agreement to reduce wages
by 4% for Encore Education Corporation — all employees. Signature required upon board approval.
Notice to employees attached. (Exhibit 7.2)

MOTION: SC  Second: PG Vote: 6/0

ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT
Lenny Esposito
Suzanne Cherry
Kelly Ahmed
Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller*
Kathy Nielsen*

| X X X X X X

)(_



73 Vote for Approval —2018-19 CHARTER SCHOOL FIRST INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT. Hesperia and
Riverside Campus reports. Must be signed by CEO upon board approval. (Exhibit 7.3)

MOTION: RG Second: KA Vote: 6/0

ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT
Lenny Esposito
Suzanne Cherry
Kelly Ahmed
Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller*
Kathy Nielsen*

| X X X X X X

)(_

8.0 BOARD COMMENTS / REPORTS. The Governing Board will take comments/updates from fellow board members, and the EEC
Executive Administration for future agenda issues.
ADD PAC Report to next meeting —R.G.
9.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION
Pursuant to Government code section 54957, the Board may adjourn to closed session at any time during the
meeting to discuss staff/student personnel matters, negotiations, litigation, and/or acquisition of land or facilities. The
board will adjourn to closed session in a private area for discussion and may take action on the following closed session
items.
A. Student Discipline appeals. Due to the confidential nature of discipline appeals, all student discipline appeals
take place in closed session.
There are no student discipline appeals scheduled for this meeting.
B. Pending Litigation. Due to the confidential nature of any litigation that may come against the corporation,
issues relating specifically to pending legal issues are orders of closed session.
a. Rodriguez vs. Encore Education Corporation - Mediation
C. Real Estate Negotiation. In the intent of fair and legal bargaining power, issues related to real estate
negotiations are discussed in closed session.
There are no real estate negotiations scheduled for this meeting.
D. Employee Actions. Any actions that may take place in regards to employees including disciplinary and corrective
actions are discussed within closed session.
Discussions about specific employees terminated and future resignations at the Riverside location.

10.0 RECONVENE AFTER CLOSED SESSION.
At the conclusion of closed session, the Board will reconvene in open session for the purposes of disclosing in
public session any actions taken during closed session regarding the outlined scope of closed session.

11.0 ADJOURNMENT -
MOTION: SC  Second: KA Vote: 6/0
ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT
Lenny Esposito
Suzanne Cherry
Kelly Ahmed
Rob Gabler
Paula Gharib
Mari Miller*
Kathy Nielsen*

|><><><><><><

X

The meeting adjourned at 8:00 (time).
The next meeting will be held, Monday, January 14, 2019 at 6:00 pm
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Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036
Fax: (760) 956-3338

www.encorehighschool.com Board Members:
Lenny Esposito, Board President
Sites: Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Hesperia Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345

— CLASSROOM F 29 Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501 Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

— CLASSROOM H1 Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*
/INFO: \

1.4.19 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES
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Special Board Meeting
Minutes

January 4, 2019
1:30 p.m.

Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036

Fax  (760) 956-3338
www.encorehighschool.com

Sites:

Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA
92345 — CLASSROOM F 29

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

/The Order of Business may be changed without notice: Notice is hereby given that the order of consideration of matters

on this agenda may be changed without prior notice.

Reasonable Limitations May be placed on public testimony: The Governing Board'’s presiding officer reserves the right to
impose reasonable time limits on public testimony to ensure that the agenda is completed. For any person requiring a

translator, this time will be doubled to account for translation time.

Special Presentation may be made: Notice is hereby given that, consistent with the requirements of the Bagley-Keene
Open Meeting Act, special presentations not mentioned in the agenda may be made at this meeting. However, any such

presentation will be for information only.

Reasonable Accommodation for any individual with a Disability: Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, any
individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or to participate in this meeting of the
Governing board may request assistance by contacting the EEC (760) 949-2036.

Public Documents relating to Open Session Agenda items are available for review by the public at the Reception Desk
at Encore Education Corporation’s Executive office or on the internet at www.encorehighschool.com. For more
information concerning this agenda, please contact EEC (760) 949-2036.

\_
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1.0 CALLTO ORDER. The meeting was called to order at ___1:43 PM___ (time).

2.0 OPEN GENERAL SESSION

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

ROLL CALL Present Absent
Lenny Esposito X
Kelly Ahmed X
Suzanne Cherry X
Rob Gabler X

Paula Gharib X

Mari Miller X
Kathy Nielsen X

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

MOTION: __Kelly Ahmed Second: _Paula Gharib Vote: ___4/0
ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT
Lenny Esposito _

Suzanne Cherry X
Kelly Ahmed X
Rob Gabler X
Paula Gharib X
Mari Miller* X
Kathy Nielsen* X

INVITATION TO ADDRESS THE BOARD, OPEN SESSION ITEMS. This is the time and place for the general public to address
the Board of Directors on any matter within jurisdiction of the Board. Comments should be limited to 3 minutes. Unless an item has been
placed on the published agenda in accordance with the Brown Act, there shall be no action taken, nor should there be comments on,
responses to, or discussion of a topic not on the agenda. The Board members may: (1) acknowledge receipt of information/report; (2)
refer to staff with no direction as to action or priority; or (3) refer the matter to the next agenda.

CONSENT ITEMS. It is recommended that the board considers approving a number of agenda items as a consent list. These items are
routine in nature and can be enacted in one motion without further discussion. Consent items may be called up by any member at the
meeting for clarification, discussion, or change.

None

INFORMATION ITEMS.
None

ACTION ITEMS.
71 Vote for Approval — SALARY SCHEDULES. Reduction in wages by 4% for Encore Education Corporation —
All Employees. Temporary Salary Schedule changes to reflect the reduction. (Exhibit 7.1)

MOTION: __Rob Gabler Second: __Kelly Ahmed Vote: __4/0
ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT
Lenny Esposito . . . X__
Suzanne Cherry X - - -

Kelly Ahmed X - - -

Rob Gabler X_ - - -

Paula Gharib X_ - - -

Mari Miller* X

Kathy Nielsen* X



Corrections must be made to the following:

CEO Step 11-12 $200,000.00 not $2,000.000.00

Correct the first Classified Instructor Salary Schedule title changed to Certificated Teacher Salary Schedule
Reflect changes in the minutes

8.0 BOARD COMMENTS / REPORTS. The Governing Board will take comments/updates from fellow board members, and the EEC
Executive Administration for future agenda issues.

9.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION
Pursuant to Government code section 54957, the Board may adjourn to closed session at any time during the
meeting to discuss staff/student personnel matters, negotiations, litigation, and/or acquisition of land or facilities. The
board will adjourn to closed session in a private area for discussion and may take action on the following closed session
items.
A. Student Discipline appeals. Due to the confidential nature of discipline appeals, all student discipline appeals
take place in closed session.
There are no student discipline appeals scheduled for this meeting.
B. Pending Litigation. Due to the confidential nature of any litigation that may come against the corporation,
issues relating specifically to pending legal issues are orders of closed session.
There are no pending litigation discussions scheduled for this meeting.
C. Real Estate Negotiation. In the intent of fair and legal bargaining power, issues related to real estate
negotiations are discussed in closed session.
There are no updates at this time.
D. Employee Actions. Any actions that may take place in regards to employees including disciplinary and corrective
actions are discussed within closed session.
There are no actions at this time.

10.0 RECONVENE AFTER CLOSED SESSION.
At the conclusion of closed session, the Board will reconvene in open session for the purposes of disclosing in
public session any actions taken during closed session regarding the outlined scope of closed session.

11.0 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: __Kelly Ahmed Second: __Paula Gharib Vote: __4/0
ROLL CALL AYE NAY ABSTENTION ABSENT
Lenny Esposito . . . X__
Suzanne Cherry X - - -
Kelly Ahmed X - - -
Rob Gabler X - - -
Paula Gharib X _ . _
Mari Miller* - - - X
Kathy Nielsen* - - - X

The meeting adjourned at 1:47 PM (time).

The next meeting will be held, Monday, January 14 at 6:00 pm
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c orporation

Administrative Salary Schedule 2018 — 2019 Fiscal Year

Temporary Wage Reduction

Dean of Students Assistant Dean of Students
Temporary
Temporary Temporary
Step Current 4% Wage Monthly Step Current 4% Wage Temporary Moflthly
X Wage X Wage Reduction
Reduction X Reduction
Reduction
1 $110,000.00 | $4,400.00 $ 105,600.00 $ 9,600.00 1 S 95,000.00 | $3,800.00 | $ 91,200.00 $ 8,290.91
2 $114,000.00 | S 4,560.00 $ 109,440.00 $ 9,949.09 2 $ 99,000.00 | $3,960.00 | $ 95,040.00 $  8,640.00
3 $118,000.00 | $4,720.00 $ 113,280.00 $ 10,298.18 3 $102,000.00 | $4,080.00 | $ 97,920.00 $  8,901.82
4 $123,000.00 | $4,920.00 $118,080.00 $ 10,734.55 4 $106,000.00 | $4,240.00 | $101,760.00 $ 9,250.91
5 $128,000.00 | $5,120.00 $122,880.00 $ 11,170.91 5 $111,000.00 | $4,440.00 | $106,560.00 $ 9,687.27
6 $131,000.00 | S 5,240.00 $ 125,760.00 $ 11,432.73 6 $114,000.00 | $4,560.00 | $109,440.00 $  9,949.09
School Counselor Administrator
Temporary
Temporary Temporary
Step Current 4% Wage Monthly Step Current 4% Wage Temporary MoTItth
. Wage . Wage Reduction
Reduction . Reduction
Reduction
1 S 82,000.00 | $3,280.00 $ 78,720.00 $ 7,156.36 1 S 70,000.00 | $2,800.00 | $ 67,200.00 $ 6,109.09
2 S 85,000.00 | $3,400.00 $ 81,600.00 $ 7,418.18 2 S 72,000.00 | $2,880.00 | $ 69,120.00 $ 6,283.64
3 $ 88,000.00 | $3,520.00 $ 84,480.00 $ 7,680.00 3 S 74,000.00 | $2,960.00 | $ 71,040.00 $ 6,458.18
4 $ 91,000.00 | $3,640.00 $ 87,360.00 $ 7,941.82 4 S 76,000.00 | $3,040.00 | $ 72,960.00 $ 6,632.73
5 S 93,000.00 | $3,720.00 $ 89,280.00 $ 8,116.36 5 S 78,000.00 | $3,120.00 | $ 74,880.00 $ 6,807.27
6 S 95,000.00 | $3,800.00 $ 91,200.00 $ 8,290.91 6 S 80,000.00 | $3,200.00 | $ 76,800.00 $ 6,981.82

In order to be considered for a step increase, the employee has to work 110 or more days during the regular administration
calendar.

Administration is eligible for full employee benefits, including holiday pay, sick time accrual and personal leave days, and
employer contribution up to $15,000 per year for employee benefits.

Employees will have 30 days from the date of hire to enroll in any benefit programs.

Employees must follow time sheet regulations as described during their training period and/or in the employee handbook.
Timesheet pay, is calculated from the 1° to the 15 paid on the 25" and the 16" to the 30" or 31% (last day of the month)
paid on the 10™ day of the following month or the immediately preceding business day if the 10" or 25" falls on a weekend
or holiday.

This salary schedule will be reviewed, edited and adopted by the School Board every 5 years.
This salary schedule includes a 2.5% COLA after completing a year of Step 6.

Executive Offices, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036
3666 University Ave., Third Floor, Riverside, CA 92501. 951.824.1358
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Certificated Teacher Salary Schedule 2018 — 2019 Fiscal Year
Temporary Wage Reduction
CTE/BA to 44 MA or BA+45-59
Temporary T::;’:]:;T;y Temporary Temporary
Step Current 4% Wage Wage Step Current 4% Wage Monthly Wage
Reduction X Reduction Reduction
Reduction
0 S 49,000.00 S 1,960.00 $ 47,040.00 $  4,276.36 0 S 50,000.00 S 2,000.00 $ 48,000.00 $ 4,363.64
1 S 52,000.00 S 2,080.00 $ 49,920.00 $ 4,538.18 1 S 53,000.00 S 2,120.00 $ 50,880.00 $ 4,625.45
2 S 53,000.00 S 2,120.00 $ 50,880.00 $ 4,625.45 2 S 55,000.00 S 2,200.00 $ 52,800.00 $  4,800.00
3 S 54,000.00 S 2,160.00 $51,840.00 $  4,712.73 3 S 57,000.00 S 2,280.00 $ 54,720.00 $ 4,974.55
4 S 56,000.00 S 2,240.00 $53,760.00 $ 4,887.27 4 S 59,000.00 S 2,360.00 $ 56,640.00 $  5,149.09
5 S 58,000.00 S 2,320.00 $55,680.00 $ 5,061.82 5 S 61,000.00 S 2,440.00 $ 58,560.00 $ 5,323.64
6 S 60,000.00 S 2,400.00 $57,600.00 $ 5,236.36 6 S 63,000.00 S 2,520.00 $ 60,480.00 $ 5,498.18
7 S 62,000.00 S 2,480.00 $59,520.00 $ 5,410.91 7 S 66,000.00 S 2,640.00 $ 63,360.00 $ 5,760.00
8 S 64,000.00 S 2,560.00 8 S 68,000.00 S 2,720.00 $ 65,280.00
9 9 S 70,000.00 S 2,800.00 $ 67,200.00
10 10 S 73,000.00 S 2,920.00 $ 70,080.00
11 11 S 76,000.00 S 3,040.00 $72,960.00
12 12 S 79,000.00 S 3,160.00 $ 75,840.00
13 13
14 14
15 15
MA+15 or BA+60 MA+30 or BA+75
Temporary Temporary Temporary Temporary
Step Current 4% Wage Monthly Wage Step Current 4% Wage Monthly Wage
Reduction Reduction Reduction Reduction
0 S 51,000.00 S 2,040.00 $ 48,960.00 $ 4,450.91 0 S 55,000.00 S 2,200.00 $ 52,800.00 $  4,800.00
1 S 55,000.00 S 2,200.00 $52,800.00 $  4,800.00 1 S 58,000.00 S 2,320.00 $ 55,680.00 $ 5,061.82
2 S 58,000.00 S 2,320.00 $55,680.00 $ 5,061.82 2 S 60,000.00 S 2,400.00 $ 57,600.00 $ 5,236.36
3 S 60,000.00 S 2,400.00 $57,600.00 $ 5,236.36 3 S 62,000.00 S 2,480.00 $ 59,520.00 $ 5,410.91
4 S 62,000.00 S 2,480.00 $59,520.00 $ 541091 4 S 65,000.00 S 2,600.00 $ 62,400.00 $ 567273
5 S 64,000.00 S 2,560.00 $ 61,440.00 $ 5,585.45 5 S 67,000.00 S 2,680.00 $ 64,320.00 $ 5,847.27
6 S 66,000.00 S 2,640.00 $ 63,360.00 $ 5,760.00 6 S 70,000.00 S 2,800.00 $ 67,200.00 $  6,109.09
7 S 69,000.00 S 2,760.00 $ 66,240.00 $ 6,021.82 7 S 72,000.00 S 2,880.00 $ 69,120.00 $  6,283.64
8 S 72,000.00 S 2,880.00 $ 69,120.00 $ 6,283.64 8 S 75,000.00 S 3,000.00 $ 72,000.00 $  6,545.45
9 S 74,000.00 S 2,960.00 $ 71,040.00 $ 6,458.18 9 S 78,000.00 S 3,120.00 $ 74,880.00 $  6,807.27
10 S 77,000.00 S 3,080.00 $ 73,920.00 $  6,720.00 10 S 80,000.00 S 3,200.00 $ 76,800.00 $ 6,981.82
11 11
12 12
13 13
14 14
15 15

This salary schedule is for full time credentialed teachers only. These employees follow the Teacher / Instructor work calendar.

Teachers holding an internship or emergency credential cannot go beyond step 0. This salary schedule includes a 2.5% COLA.
This employee is eligible for full employee benefits, including holiday pay and sick time accrual, personal leave accrual and health benefits not to

exceed $12,000 per year total employer contribution.

Teachers and Instructors with 7 years plus of service credit to Encore Education Corporation will receive up to $14,000 per year in employer
contributions for health benefits.

Employees will have 30 days from the date of hire to enroll in any benefit programs.

Employees must follow time sheet regulations as described during their training period and/or in the employee handbook. Timesheet pay, is calculated
from the 15t to the 15t paid on the 25t and the 16t" to the 30t or 315t (last day of the month) paid on the 10t day of the following month or the
immediately preceding business day if the 10t or 25t falls on a weekend or holiday.

This salary schedule will be reviewed, edited and adopted by the School Board every 5 years.

Executive Offices, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036

3666 University Ave., Third Floor, Riverside, CA 92501. 951.824.1358




Classified Instructor Salary Schedule 2018 — 2019 Fiscal Year

Temporary Wage Reduction
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Industry Only BA to 59
Temporary Temporary Te::‘ ':::Iry T:,Irzr::;:y
Step Current 4% Annual Wage Monthly Wage Step Current 4%
Reduction Reduction Wagt_a Wagt.e
Reduction Reduction
o S S s s o S s s s
42,000.00 1,680.00 40,320.00 3,665.45 44,000.00 1,760.00 42,240.00 3,840.00
. E S s s . s E s s
46,000.00 1,840.00 44,160.00 4,014.55 49,000.00 1,960.00 47,040.00 4,276.36
5 S S s s 5 S E s s
48,000.00 1,920.00 46,080.00 4,189.09 51,000.00 2,040.00 48,960.00 4,450.91
R S S s s R S e s s
50,000.00 2,000.00 48,000.00 4,363.64 53,000.00 2,120.00 50,880.00 4,625.45
. s e s s . s S s s
52,000.00 2,080.00 49,920.00 4,538.18 55,000.00 2,200.00 52,800.00 4,800.00
. S S s s 5 S E s s
54,000.00 2,160.00 51,840.00 4,712.73 57,000.00 2,280.00 54,720.00 4,974.55
. S S s s . S E s s
56,000.00 2,240.00 53,760.00 4,887.27 59,000.00 2,360.00 56,640.00 5,149.09
. s S s s . s S s s
58,000.00 2,320.00 55,680.00 5,061.82 61,000.00 2,440.00 58,560.00 5,323.64
o o S S s s
63,000.00 2,520.00 60,480.00 5,498.18
. . S S s s
65,000.00 2,600.00 62,400.00 5,672.73
10 10 $ $ $ $
67,000.00 2,680.00 64,320.00 5,847.27
11 11
12 12
13 13
14 14
15 15

Continued to next page

Executive Offices, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036
3666 University Ave., Third Floor, Riverside, CA 92501. 951.824.1358
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Classified Instructor Salary Schedule 2018 — 2019 Fiscal Year

Temporary Wage Reduction

MA or BA+ 60-74 MA+30 or BA+75
Temporary Temporary Te::‘ ':::Iry T:ﬂn;zct):;\ry
Step Current 4% Annual Wage Monthly Wage Step Current 4% Wage Wagey
Reduction Reduction Reduction Reduction
o S S s s o s S s s
46,000.00 1,840.00 44,160.00 4,014.55 47,000.00 1,880.00 45,120.00 4,101.82
} S S s s . S S s s
50,000.00 2,000.00 48,000.00 4,363.64 53,000.00 2,120.00 50,880.00 4,625.45
) E S s s 5 S S s s
52,000.00 2,080.00 49,920.00 4,538.18 56,000.00 2,240.00 53,760.00 4,887.27
R S S s s R E S s s
54,000.00 2,160.00 51,840.00 4,712.73 59,000.00 2,360.00 56,640.00 5,149.09
. s S s s . s S s s
56,000.00 2,240.00 53,760.00 4,887.27 62,000.00 2,480.00 59,520.00 5,410.91
s S S s s 5 S S s s
58,000.00 2,320.00 55,680.00 5,061.82 65,000.00 2,600.00 62,400.00 5,672.73
. S S s s . E S s s
60,000.00 2,400.00 57,600.00 5,236.36 68,000.00 2,720.00 65,280.00 5,934.55
; s S s s ; s s s s
62,000.00 2,480.00 59,520.00 5,410.91 71,000.00 2,840.00 68,160.00 6,196.36
g S s s s R S s s s
64,000.00 2,560.00 61,440.00 5,585.45 74,000.00 2,960.00 71,040.00 6,458.18
. S S s s . E S s s
66,000.00 2,640.00 63,360.00 5,760.00 77,000.00 3,080.00 73,920.00 6,720.00
10 S S s s 10 S S s s
68,000.00 2,720.00 65,280.00 5,934.55 80,000.00 3,200.00 76,800.00 6,981.82
11 11
12 12
13 13
14 14
15 15

Step with the grey highlight are subject to overtime at an hourly rate and are required to keep a timesheet.

This salary schedule is for full time instructors that have been hired based on industry experience. These employees follow the Teacher / Instructor
work calendar.

A Classified instructor that completes the State of California credentialing program will roll over into the certificated teacher pay scale.

This employee is eligible for full employee benefits, including holiday pay and sick time accrual, personal leave accrual and health benefits not to
exceed $12,000 per year total employer contribution.

Employees will have 30 days from the date of hire to enroll in any benefit programs.

Employees must follow time sheet regulations as described during their training period and/or in the employee handbook. Timesheet pay, is calculated
from the 15t to the 15t paid on the 25t and the 16t to the 30t or 315t (last day of the month) paid on the 10t day of the following month or the
immediately preceding business day if the 10th or 25t falls on a weekend or holiday.

This salary schedule will be reviewed, edited and adopted by the School Board every 5 years.

This salary schedule includes a 2.5% COLA.

Executive Offices, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036
3666 University Ave., Third Floor, Riverside, CA 92501. 951.824.1358




Day Rate Salary Schedule 2018 — 2019 Fiscal Year

Temporary Wage Reduction
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Daily Sub Long Term Substitute
Temporary Temporary
Step | Current 4% Wage Hourly Step | Current 4% Wage Hourly

Reduction Reduction
1 $140.00 | $S560 | $ 13440 | $ 16.80 1 $160.00 $6.40 $ 153.60 | $ 19.20
2 $145.00 | $580 | $ 139.20 | $ 17.40 2 $165.00 $6.60 $ 158.40 | $ 19.80
3 $150.00 | $6.00 | $ 144.00 | $ 18.00 3 $170.00 $6.80 $ 163.20 | $ 20.40
4 $150.00 | $6.00 | $ 144.00 | $ 18.00 4 $170.00 $6.80 $ 163.20 | $ 20.40
5 $150.00 | $6.00 | $ 144.00 | S 18.00 5 $170.00 $6.80 $ 163.20 | $ 20.40
6 $150.00 | $6.00 | $ 144.00 | S 18.00 6 $170.00 $6.80 $ 163.20 | $ 20.40

Daily Classified Instructor Daily Certified Teacher
Temporary Temporary
Step | Current 4% Wage Hourly Step | Current 4% Wage Hourly

Reduction Reduction
1 $140.00 | $560 | $ 13440 | S 16.80 1 $ 140.00 $5.60 $ 13440 | $ 16.80
2 $170.00 | $6.80 | $ 163.20 | $ 20.40 2 $170.00 $6.80 $ 163.20 | $ 20.40
3 $175.00 | S7.00 | $ 168.00 | $ 21.00 3 $180.00 $7.20 $ 172.80 | $ 21.60
4 $180.00 | $S7.20 | $ 17280 | $ 21.60 4 $185.00 $7.40 $ 17760 | $ 22.20
5 $180.00 | S7.20 | $§ 17280 | $ 21.60 5 $190.00 $7.60 $ 18240 | $ 22.80
6 $180.00 | S7.20 | $§ 17280 | $ 21.60 6 $190.00 $7.60 $ 18240 | $ 22.80

TIME SHEET POSITION

Employees must follow time sheet regulations as described during their training period and/or in the

employee handbook. Timesheet pay, is calculated from the 1°t to the 15" paid on the 25" and the 16™ to
the 30" or 31°¢ (last day of the month) paid on the 10" day of the following month or the immediately

preceding business day if the 10" or 25 falls on a weekend or holiday.

This salary schedule will be reviewed, edited and adopted by the School Board every 5 years.

Executive Offices, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036
3666 University Ave., Third Floor, Riverside, CA 92501. 951.824.1358




Executive Salary Schedule 2018 — 2019 Fiscal year

Temporary Wage Reduction
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CEO C00/CMO
Temporary Temporary Temporary
Step Current 4% Temporary. Wage Monthly Wage Step Current 4% Wage Monthly Wage
Reduction X . )
Reduction Reduction Reduction
$ $
1-2 $ 160,000.00 $ 6,400.00 $ 153,600.00 13,963.64 1-2 $ 150,000.00 $6,000.00 | 144,000.00 3 13,000.91
S S
3-4 $ 170,000.00 $ 6,800.00 S 163,200.00 14,836.36 3-4 $ 160,000.00 $ 6,400.00 | 153,600.00 3 13,963.64
$ $
>-6 $ 180,000.00 $7,200.00 $ 172,800.00 15,709.09 5-6 $ 170,000.00 $6,800.00 | 163,200.00 3 14,836.36
$ $
7-8 $190,000.00 $ 7,600.00 $ 182,400.00 16,581.82 7-8 $ 180,000.00 $7,200.00 | 172,800.00 3 15,709.09
S S
9-10 $ 195,000.00 $ 7,800.00 S 187,200.00 17,018.18 9-10 $ 185,000.00 $7,400.00 | 177,600.00 3 16,145.45
$ $
11-12 $200,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $ 192,000.00 17,454.55 11-12 $ 190,000.00 $7,600.00 | 182,400.00 3 16,581.82
Officer Director
Temporary Temporary Temporary Temporary
Step Current 4% . Monthly Wage Step Current 4% Wage Monthly Wage
Wage Reduction . . X
Reduction Reduction Reduction
S S
1-2 $115,000.00 $ 4,600.00 $ 110,400.00 10,036.36 1-2 $ 105,000.00 $4,200.00 | 100,800.00 3 9,163.64
$ $
3-4 $120,000.00 $ 4,800.00 $ 115,200.00 10,472.73 3-4 $ 110,000.00 $ 4,400.00 | 105,600.00 3 9,600.00
S S
>-6 $ 126,000.00 $ 5,040.00 S 120,960.00 10,996.36 5-6 $ 116,000.00 $4,640.00 | 111,360.00 3 10,123.64
$ $
7-8 $131,000.00 $5,240.00 $ 125,760.00 11,432.73 7-8 $121,000.00 $4,840.00 | 116,160.00 3 10,560.00
$ $
9-10 $137,000.00 $ 5,480.00 $ 131,520.00 11,956.36 9-10 $ 127,000.00 $5,080.00 | 121,920.00 3 11,083.64
S S
11-12 $ 140,000.00 $ 5,600.00 S 134,400.00 12,218.18 11-12 $ 130,000.00 $5,200.00 | 124,800.00 3 11,345.45

In order to be considered for a step increase, the employee has to work 110 or more days during the regular

administration calendar.

Administration is eligible for full employee benefits, including holiday pay, sick time accrual and personal leave days, and
employer contribution up to $15,000 per year for employee benefits.

Employees will have 30 days from the date of hire to enroll in any benefit programs.

Employees must follow time sheet regulations as described during their training period and/or in the employee
handbook. Timesheet pay, is calculated from the 15 to the 15™ paid on the 25" and the 16™ to the 30 or 31° (last day

Executive Offices, 3666 University Ave., Third Floor, Riverside, CA 92501. 951.824.1358
16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036. encorehighschool.com
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of the month) paid on the 10" day of the following month or the immediately preceding business day if the 10 or 25%
falls on a weekend or holiday.

This salary schedule will be reviewed, edited and adopted by the School Board every 5 years.

This salary schedule includes a 2.5% COLA after completing a year of Step 12 with your position.

Executive Salary Schedule 2018 — 2019 Fiscal year

Temporary Wage Reduction

Manager
Assistant Manager
Tempora Tempora
Step Current 4% Temporary. Month‘I)y Wr:ge Step Current 4% Temporary. Month‘I)y Wr:ge
Wage Reduction . Wage Reduction .
Reduction Reduction
1-2 S 78,000.00 $3,120.00 S 74,880.00 $ 6,807.27 1-2 $ 65,000.00 $2,600.00 S 62,400.00 $ 5,672.73
3-4 S 82,000.00 S 3,280.00 S 78,720.00 S 7,156.36 3-4 S 68,000.00 $2,720.00 S 65,280.00 $ 5,934.55
5-6 $ 84,000.00 $ 3,360.00 $ 80,640.00 $ 7,330.91 5-6 $ 70,000.00 $2,800.00 $ 67,200.00 $ 6,109.09
7-8 S 87,000.00 $ 3,480.00 S 83,520.00 $ 7,592.73 7-8 S 72,000.00 $2,880.00 S 69,120.00 S 6,283.64
9-10 $ 90,000.00 $ 3,600.00 $ 86,400.00 $ 7,854.55 9-10 $ 74,000.00 $2,960.00 $ 71,040.00 $ 6,458.18
11-12 $ 92,000.00 $ 3,680.00 S 88,320.00 $ 8,029.09 11-12 $ 76,000.00 $ 3,040.00 S 72,960.00 $ 663273
Support Assistant
Tempora Tempora
Step Current 4% Temporary, Monthl:l’y Wr:ge Step Current 4% Temporar\( Monthl:l’y Wr:ge
Wage Reduction . Wage Reduction .
Reduction Reduction
1-2 $ 50,000.00 $2,000.00 $ 48,000.00 $ 4,363.64 1-2 $ 35,000.00 $1,400.00 $ 33,600.00 $ 3,054.55
3-4 S 52,000.00 $ 2,080.00 S 49,920.00 $ 4,538.18 3-4 S 37,000.00 $1,480.00 S 35,520.00 $  3,229.09
5-6 $ 54,000.00 $2,160.00 $ 51,840.00 $ 4,712.73 5-6 $ 39,000.00 $1,560.00 $ 37,440.00 $ 3,403.64
7-8 $ 56,000.00 $2,240.00 S 53,760.00 $ 4,887.27 7-8 S 41,000.00 $1,640.00 S 39,360.00 $ 3,578.18
9-10 S 58,000.00 $2,320.00 S 55,680.00 $ 5,061.82 9-10 S 43,000.00 $1,720.00 S 41,280.00 $ 3,752.73
11-12 $ 60,000.00 $ 2,400.00 $ 57,600.00 $ 5,236.36 11-12 $ 45,000.00 $1,800.00 $ 43,200.00 $  3,927.27

In order to be considered for a step increase, the employee has to work 110 or more days during the regular

administration calendar.

Administration is eligible for full employee benefits, including holiday pay, sick time accrual and personal leave days, and
employer contribution up to $15,000 per year for employee benefits.

Employees will have 30 days from the date of hire to enroll in any benefit programs.

Employees must follow time sheet regulations as described during their training period and/or in the employee

handbook. Timesheet pay, is calculated from the 15 to the 15™ paid on the 25" and the 16" to the 30" or 31°t (last day

Executive Offices, 3666 University Ave., Third Floor, Riverside, CA 92501. 951.824.1358
16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036. encorehighschool.com
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of the month) paid on the 10" day of the following month or the immediately preceding business day if the 10 or 25%

falls on a weekend or holiday.
This salary schedule will be reviewed, edited and adopted by the School Board every 5 years.

This salary schedule includes a 2.5% COLA after completing a year of Step 12 with your position.

Executive Offices, 3666 University Ave., Third Floor, Riverside, CA 92501. 951.824.1358
16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036. encorehighschool.com
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Hourly Salary Schedule 2018 — 2019 Fiscal Year

Temporary Wage Reduction

Cafeteria/ Bus Driver / Aide Administrative Campus Aide
Temporary Temporary Temporary
Current 4% Wage Current 4% Wage Current 4% Wage
Reduction Reduction Reduction

$15.00 $0.60 $ 14.40 $ 14.00 $0.56 $ 13.44 S 14.00 $0.56 $ 13.44
$17.00 $0.68 $ 16.32 $ 16.00 $0.64 $ 15.36 $ 15.00 $0.60 $ 14.40
$18.00 $0.72 $ 17.28 $17.00 $0.68 $ 16.32 $ 16.00 $0.64 $ 15.36
$19.00 $0.76 $ 18.24 $17.00 $0.68 $ 16.32 $17.00 $0.68 $ 16.32
$20.00 $0.80 $ 19.20 $ 18.00 $0.72 $ 17.28 $ 18.00 $0.72 $ 17.28
$20.00 $0.80 $ 19.20 $19.00 $0.76 $ 18.24 $ 18.00 $0.72 $ 17.28
$21.00 $0.84 $ 20.16 $20.00 $0.80 $ 19.20 $19.00 $0.76 $ 18.24
$22.00 $0.88 $ 2112 $21.00 $0.84 $ 20.16 $20.00 $0.80 $ 19.20
$23.00 $0.92 $ 22.08 $22.00 $0.88 $ 2112 $21.00 $0.84 $ 20.16
$24.00 $0.96 $ 23.04 $22.00 $0.88 $ 2112 $22.00 $0.88 $ 2112
$ 25.00 $1.00 $ 24.00 $23.00 $0.92 $ 22.08 $22.00 $0.88 $ 2112
$26.00 $1.04 $ 24.96 $ 24.00 $0.96 $ 23.04 $23.00 $0.92 $ 22.08
$27.00 $1.08 $ 2592 $ 25.00 $1.00 $ 24.00 $ 24.00 $0.96 $ 23.04
$28.00 $1.12 $ 26.88 $26.00 $1.04 $ 24.96 $25.00 $1.00 $ 24.00
$29.00 $1.16 $ 27.84 $27.00 $1.08 $ 25.92 $26.00 $1.04 $ 24.96
$29.00 $1.16 $ 27.84 $27.00 $1.08 $ 25.92 $27.00 $1.08 $ 25.92

This salary schedule includes a 2.5 COLA.

This salary schedule is for hourly paid employees, Part Time and Full Time. Part Time employees are
classified as anyone that works less than 30 hours per week.

Employees must follow time sheet regulations as described during their training period and/or in the
employee handbook. Timesheet pay, is calculated from the 1°t to the 15 paid on the 25" and the 16™ to
the 30" or 31°¢ (last day of the month) paid on the 10" day of the following month or the immediately
preceding business day if the 10" or 25" falls on a weekend or holiday.

40 hour plus employees are eligible for full employee benefits, including holiday pay and sick time
accrual, and health benefits not to exceed $10,000 per year maximum school payout Employees working
30-39 hours a week are eligible for employee benefits, including holiday pay and sick time accrual at a
pro-rated amount and health benefits not to exceed $7,000 per year maximum. Eligible employees will
have 30 days from date of hire to enroll in any benefit programs.

This salary schedule will be reviewed, edited and adopted by the School Board every 5 years.

This salary schedule includes a 2.5% COLA after completing a year of Step 15 with your positon.

Executive Offices, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036
3666 University Ave., Third Floor, Riverside, CA 92501. 951.824.1358
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January 14, 2019

Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036

Fax: (760) 956-3338
www.encorehighschool.com

Sites:

Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

-

INFO:
CEO EXPENSE REPORT

~



http://www.encorehighschool.com/

EXPENSE REPORT

Executive Name: Denise Griffin

Date Vendor

11/8/2018 Shop n Go
10/15/2018 Republic parking
10/11/2018 Lowes
10/10/2018 Osh

10/3/2018 Republic parking
10/25/2018 Smart n Final
10/19/2018 Republic parking
10/18/2018 Republic parking

10/15/2018 Old Spaghetti Factory

10/23/2018 Harbor Freight
10/25/2018 Lowes

Expense

Transportation 50/50
Transportation 50/50
Maintenance Hesperia
Maintenance Hesperia
Transportation 50/50
Hesperia Class Supplies
Transportation 50/50
Transportation 50/50
Riverside Staff Meeting
Maintenance Hesperia
Maintenance Hesperia

‘11/14/2018-€VS-Pharmacy —Class Supplies Riverside

10/26/2018 Lowes
10/26/2018 Home Depot
10/26/2018 Smart n Final
11/9/2018 Republic parking
10/23/2018 Republic parking
11/7/2018 Main Street 76
11/10/2018 Main Street 76
11/14/2018 Del Taco
10/25/2018 99 Cents Only
10/23/2018 Republic parking
11/9/2018 Imperial Stations
11/9/2018 Imperial Stations

Maintenance Hesperia
Maintenance Hesperia
Hesperia Class Supplies
Transportatioﬁ 50/50
Transpo.rtation'SO/SO :
Transportation 50/50
Transportation 50/50
Student Field Trip Hesperia
Hesperia Class Supplies
Transportation 50/50
Transportation 50/50
Transportation 50/50

Total Expenses

Amount

B2 Vo B Vo B Vo N Vo S V) (L 0 S 00 SR W0 G 0TS 0 T ¥ SR Vo B W T ¥ SR ¥ S ¥ SONE 7 N 7 SE 7 E ¥, S 0 S 7, T ¥,

76.15
8.00
207.53
71.61
8.00
68.67
8.00
8.00
41.56
51.69
50.51
12.58
80.78
159.24
35.56
5.00
2.00
65.12
65.60
68.90
16.15
2.00
75.00
75.00

1,262.65

All Chief Officer Expenses must be board approved in open session. This expense report signed by a membetr
f Encore's Board of Directors certifies that this expense report, and accompanying backup has been reviewec
by the Board and has been Approved by majority vote in a Board Meeting.

Date of Board Meeting

Signed by:

10-Dec-18

Date:

Encore Education Corporation



PLACE RECEIPT HE

TAPE RECEIPT F1

SHORP N GO
FGEE1453648E1
11254 I AVE
HEZPERIA
92345
11/88/26818 359922435
B7:28:54 AM

. [

HHHHRHH a7 2
Yisa

INVOICE B537S6
AUTH BR85S

FLUMP# 14
Diesel 2 CR 49.0
PRICE/G&L F3.¢

FUEL TOTAL % 7&.

CREDIT 3 TH.

o) Purchase,/Capturs
Sifte #: 0GBGAARA20233 b2

SHLFE Muber 1

Sequance Mumber 448s

Siped

AFPROVED 888315

Tell us about
your wisit!
myessonmobilvisit
. M

- NO STAPLES

Store:

Date:

[ =0% =%

Amount;

¥ 2015

Reimbursed To:
e C -
ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY -

Location:

Expense:

= ol . £
Z U z@,tﬁjj
[

Approval:

Rev. 8/18



PLACE RECEIPT HERE

TAPE RECEIPT FLAT,DO NOT FOLD RECEIPTS - NO STAPLES

R B A

Amount;

_$g.

Reimbursed To:
_Dowise Cwfin

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

= / Lo
"\ﬂ‘s C-,‘ // < A ’7
o / i R / /ﬁf

Expense:

—""}

y —
/./’/,,,-;—-zw&/ﬁ’rd’& g~ % P
2 7




LOWE'S
TAPE RECE] l I

‘ APLES
LOVE S HOHE CENTERS, LLC
12189 APPLE YALLEY RoAD

APPLE VALLEY. Ch 92308  (760) 981-3060

- SALE -~
SRLEGH: S25280U1 182019  (RANSH: 86276222 10-11-18

15637 SIGHA 3/8-IN NN CLAMP CON e
2.98  DISCOUNT EACH -0.21
157223 UT 5000 GORK L IGHT(-32077 bb. b6
17,98 DISCOUNT EACH “1.26
48 16.72
193667 TRK STEH MOUNT PHOTO CTAL 46.40
9.9 DISCOUNT ERCH -0.70
e 5.26
1832 8§ 5-CT WHITE SHELF+ROD B 16.65
16.48  DISCOUNT EACH -1.15
5@ 15.33

SUBTOTAL: 192,70
ThX: 14.93
INUOICE 01769 TOTAL: 207.63
H/LC: 207.53
TOTHAL DISCOUNT : 14.50
HAC XRXRXRXRAKANGQ00 AMOUNT 1207 .63 AUTHCD: 624752
LHIP "EFID:?&ZBU1053691 10/11/16 09:44:00
APL: CRPITAL ONE  TUR: 000000800C
AID: ACOOOONDOATDID  Tyl: EBOGO
STORE: 2520  TERMINAL: 01  10/11/16 00:44:22
# 0OF ITEMS PURCHASED: 15
EXCLLOES FEES, SERVICES AuD SPECIAL ORDER ITEMS
ety el e L
LR AL
AR AR VAR
THANK YOI FOR SHOPPING LOWE'S.
SEE REVERSE SIOE FOR RETURK POLICY.
STORE MAHAGER: TREVOR AMEZCUA

|

LOUE'S PRICE HATCH GUARANTEE
FOR HORE DETAILS, VISV LOYES.COM/PRICEMATCH

HAREAREREER R RO OO RR R R AR R AR 4 R
YOUR OPINIONS COUNT!
REGISTER FOR @ CHAKCE TD BE
ORE OF FIVE DS$300 WINKERS DRAMN MONVHLY!
FREGISTRESE EN EL SORTED MEHSURL
PARA SER UNO DE LOS CINCO GANADORES DE US$300!

T
¥ o® ¥ ¥ x ¥

+ PEGISTER BY COMPLETING A GUEST SATISFACTION SURVEY
S WITHIK OME MEEK AT: wwu.loues.cow/survay
YOUR 1D #01769 2528 264

HO PURCHASE NECESSARY TO ENTER UR WIN.
D GWHERE PRONIBIVED. HUST BE 18 OR OLDER YO ENTER.
FICTAL RULES & WINNERS AT: wiw.Toues.con/survey
R L LR R LR RS E SR AR SR PR SR R R EE LR LR R R DL R TS L L)

STORE: 2520  TERNINAL: ©1 10411718 04:44:22

Date:
o=l -1

Amount:
41 207.0%

Reimbursed To:

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

3 |
/Aﬁvde;ﬂﬁﬂjtﬁ’ﬂé;ﬁq/

SeZsw

Expense:

/ ‘Z.// < f
rd A At ’/}%’WE{C

Approval:

fizﬁm, 14, 24i9

&

l//?j-)‘.‘ . '/{’f!,{( I/}/l AL~ ;:‘-‘::j i
(#
Rev. 8/18



TAP]

‘ALL SALES FINAL #
Orchard Supply
Hardware
16824 Main Street (), chavd
Hesperia, CA 92345..... . .
**760-947-1742

0521 015 824 3015 10/10/18 08:39:33

NORMAL SALE
*000007647.7276556 1-GANG PLATE LT AL
18 048 0487
*0000078477276556 1-GANG PLATE LT AL
1€ 0,48 0487
*0000050169562505 2 LAMPHOLDER GREY
16 5,50
*0000092?261T02?3 LAMPHOLDER BRNZ
ety W, L B.00
*0000092326110273 LAMPHOLDER BRNZ
18 5.00
*0000092326110273 LAMPHOLDER BRNZ
16 5,00
*¥0000092326110273 LAMEHﬂLPE§~gRNZ

*¥0000092326110266 LAMPHOLDER GRAY
18 5.00
*0000092326110266 LAMPHOLDER GRAY
18 5.00
¥0000092326110280 LAMPHULDER WHITE
5.00« v.5~BQ T
*OOOUUQLdszIUZBO LAMPHULDER WHITE-
18 5,00
#0000092326110280 LAMPHOLDER WHITE
18 5.00
*¥0000092326110280 LAMPHOLDER WHITE
18 5.00
*0000092326110280 LAMPHOLDER WHITE
18 5.00
*0000092326110273 LAMPHOLDER BRNZ
18 5.00

9.50 T
5.00 T
5.00 T
5.00 T
5.00 7
5.00 T
5.007

3,00 T
5.00 T
5.00 T
5.00 T
5.00 T
66.46
5.15

71.61
71.67

SUBTOTAL
TAX @ 7.750%
TOTAL
DERTT NO: XXXXXXXXXKXX2816
CTROUTD: S47E ==
Result: APPROVAL
Card entry mode: Chip Read
AID: ADDOOOONOY9B0B40
US DEBIT
ARC: 00
T TTO04B8000

J

[0A03602000

JSUER

£ 280153 CRD AUTH: 00000000
CHay Orclgod

ENG

JUNIOR|S OR
HIGH SGHOOLE’nTs

» - NO STA

PLES

r Recelp

Store:

Qmmfﬂ%

Date:

[0-10-13

Amount:

871 of

Reimbursed To:

Tonise Gtz

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

/\szz///’ Lot

7

Expense:

/1// {{(iqa/zg

. f ‘7 z Ol 7

i’ %

A/,

> 4

}&pproval

i

-~ "“i-"?(]'l o)

v. 8/18



TAPE RECEIPT FL

PLACE RECEIPT HERE

CEIPTS - NO STAPLES

Sale
oo 30
VIS Entry Method: Chip
Total: $ 8.00
168318 14:45:44

Inv 1t 000000606 Aoor Code: 063316
foorud: Online

CHASE. VISA
AID: AOGOGAG0A31010
'R 5 60 0 8 60
Fle T2 8

Custoner Moy

Date:

[O-03 - %

Amount:

£5.00

Reimbursed To:

Donise 1EEN

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

Expense:

e Vy ’
— i
D g3 LT e
Y™ (2 '/""“74 Ll
Fd

7

Approval:

Rev. 8/18



RE

Smart&Final. , & CEIPTS - NO STAPLES

Warehouse & Market. Friend & Neighbor.

xx Welcome To Our Hesperia Store »»

Store #304 <$
HKEKKKEKKEKKEKKEKERK LR KKK R KKK KR KKK K

See Us On WEB www.smartandfinal.com |
Cashier: DIANA
DATE  10/25/18 TIME 15:08:55 Date:
10,99 1h@ % 1.49 7/ 1h
Penguin Dry Tce 16.38 T [0-25~]%
10,93 1h@$1.49 /1b
Penguin Ory Ice 16.29 T
10,781 h@% 1.49 /b
Penguin Dry Tee 16.06 T
.07 1h@s 1.49 7 b A )
Perguin Dry Ice 15.00 T mount:
SU!?TOT?L 63 . gg ﬁ[_
Sales Tax :
m 2 0%.07
TOTAL 68.67
Dehit TENDER 68.67
Cash CHANGE 00

TOTAL NUMBER OF [TEMS THIS VISIT--» 4 Reimbursed To:

sxwxn Electronic Payment Activity wxwxx

10/25/2018 15:10:10 S0 4 3
Us DEBIT Entry Method: Chip
CARD #: KEKKRKAHRK KK 2816 i - ?
PURCHASE - APPROVED ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY
AUTH CODE : 450239 T —————————
Mode : Tssuer Location:
ATD: AOD00000980840
TVR: 8000048000 _
TAD: 06010A03A02006 — 1
TST: 6800 il —
ARC: 00 /& Ao tent .
TC: 571094EN6349882F v
MID: 2879492 TID: 001 SEQ: 031851
Total : UsD§ 68.67 Expense'
PIN VERIFIED o S
wxakx Blectronic Payvment Activity wxwas KAK KK KA KX HKA K I K YK g
wgﬁ We can serve Sats Suh / Lo
L 2 S 3 L ‘, [
15.10: 14 OP# 810017894 10/25/18 & Hou HeLTRe. 2 7/
Term: 3 Irans # 131 Store # 354 C(erj]ﬁte our customer survey
and be entere e Joe
IHANK YOU FOR SIHOPPING L Jsoe:;iﬁr gﬂefg? ?i Shanue
YOUR HESPERTA SMART AND FINAL 2

ST07T MAMARER - Robert Winter
17

$100 SmartCash Cards Approval:
_ * Please visit (/)ZI,M/L{

www.amartandfinal.com/survev
/v
[ y’; fm//

within 7 days of this shop!

Rev. 8/18



PLACE RECEIPT HERE

TAPE RECEIPT FLAT,DO NOT FOLD RECEIPTS - NO STAPLES

RIS RIVERSLUE PARKIN

3750 HARKE] STREET

RIVIRSTDE, CA. 92501
851 662- 3167

Sale
xooooooo8Lb
VISh Entry fethod: Chip
Total: $ 8.00

101918 13:23:40
Inv 1 00ABG6AR9 fopr Code: 002316
foprvd: Online

VISh DEBIT
AID: ADGA00e0a3L6L0
TVR: 80 83 00 84 ¢
I81: 66 0o

Customer Capy

TR ey

Date:

10~19 ~%

Amount:

¥ 3.00

Reimbursed To:

Denise Ciiftir

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

h/‘/' /_/ () </

Expense:

S ;,{ ,/71

;
i Ry
/U i A vtile

e

Approval:

‘4’{;’_: to . / g ) LG ;)

| Yoane /] ee {“"f'"j}*”

Rev. 8/18



PLACE RECEIPT HERE

TAPE RECEIPT FLAT.DO NOT FOLD RECEIPTS - NO STAPLES

-~
e

Date:

[O-[%~1%

Amount;

ﬁL ¥.00

Reimbursed To:

_ Denise Euifhn

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

28/°¢ &

Expense:

"}

a ol A
S LA 4/3',7‘-"}"".1{5‘7-" "‘-‘% v
7

Approval:

s, | <, Lol

/ :,,;.L/{'N‘ g

Rev. 8/18



TAPE |

REC | /@ g \@ ' gyﬁlj

PLACE RECEIPT HERE

ot

Welcome to the
01d Spaghetti Factory
3191 Mission Inn Ave

server: Kenneth DOB: 10/*7 018

25:10 PM 10/1%,72018
iable 73/1 5/50004
SALE
Visa 5242885

Las 1 #XXXCKKKNKKK 1484

Magnetic card present: GRIFFIN JOHN
Card Entry Method: §

Approval: 015263

Amount: $41.56

+ Tip:

= Total: ___

I agree to pay the ahove
total amount according to the
card issuer agreement.

**¥GUest Copy#

) STAPLES

Date:

[O-15 =%

Amount;

_ J4L50

Reimbursed To:

Pustice. G

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

,-/

= |
jﬁwﬁw&%ﬁ

Expense:

< L1/ 4 /

2] )], Aoy
s —

Approval:

C}ﬂw//bf 1009

} 1l ,4
/7;?1f??14”{ //“Jﬁtx’Z%;;;%f

Rev. 8/18



—— |HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS

| Quality Teoks at Ridicylovsly Low Prices ||
ek HESPERIA CA %00006 e W e -
TAl 11940 HESPERTA RD IS - NO STAPLES
HESPERIA, CA 92345
Telephone: (760) 949-0558 Store:
:li;[ackzxr ffiquyAJG- |tﬂ9(f>
SALE

60496 30IN X 18IN 1000LE WOOD D $15.99 Date:
60496 30IN X 18IN 1000LE WOOD D $15.99 )
60496 30IN X 18IN 1000LB WOOD D $15.99

1O -3-|%
Subtotal $47.97
Sales Tax 7.7500% $3.72
Total $i51. 69
Visa $51 ¢ Amount:

Card No. XXKXXXXXXXXX0436
Expiration Date XX/XX # §/. g
Auth. No. 09862A
CHASE VISA

Chir Read
Sianature Verified Reimbursed To:
Mode: Issuer

ARID: AOO0DDO00031010 ;!Z - 3 . %Z
TVR: 0000008000

IAD: 06010R03A02002

TSI: E500 ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY
ARC: 00 S S == e
Location:
Please Retain for Your Records
— o
Store: 00006 Reg: 02 Tran: 5534719 ’ ) y
Date: 10/23/2018 4:03:49 PM Assoc: XAXXXX & 'ij&&ﬁ/‘-‘
Ticket: 02554719 3 7
Ttem(s) Sold: 3 ///; ;: £ ;f;b"’fb{&&EXpense:
Item(s) Returned: 0 “ena . — . =
. : ke ey HEH KRR
KYLA served wou todaw. GE T HUQE CUUPDN
Thank wou for shopping at
HESPERIA CA #00006 lext TDULSI to 222377 2
| | or Coupons and Sale Alets . 1
Proof of Purchase Required for Pol . g/ Upto 4 coupon Messases per month : 3 4
Exchaneesg ' i 30 Jaus oF Purt s onth. message {

i &5 o .70t
ond data rates may arpiy CONEFATT7 ~—proval: 2

S T [swined For purchase, fext TextsTyp |, ) mw{
i

_ Esxuwu cancel .
M A

M b At

f s U¢.§7{

Or signup at

/

wuw.hnrbur?raishf.:om
|

sy

Rev. 8/18



Lowes|

LOVE'S HOHE CENTERS, LiC
12189 APPLE VALLEY ROAD
APRLE URLLEY, CA 92308 (760) 961-3000

TAPE RE(

SALE -
SHLESH: SZbudkke 1944956 TRANSH: 20300150 10-25- 14

0529 4-INAG-FT FULL RNSTN BUT 20,96
- 28 10.48
433665 4+ IN DRUNT CRP PFRD/3-TN 15,45
14 1.9

W21708 55 COMMANDER SHaP LID ul Y. 4k
24 4.9

SUBTGIAL: 6. b

THX: 3.6

INVGICE 20986 TuTHL: 50,51

DEBIT: 50.51

[ RRRKRRNAKAXK 2011 FHUUNT 50,51 AUTHCD: 044316
WIPED REF I 252620226211 10725/ 19 13:42:452
TRACE : 00243041
PURLHASE  CASH BACK  [uTAL DEBIT
50.51 0.00 q0.51

SIORE: 2528 [ERRINAL: 20 10/29/18 1343216
# OF ITEMS FURCHASED -
EALLUDES FEES, SERVICES AND SPECIAL GROER T1EMS

HERU
AR
| i

|| ll-‘ I
I
LAl
THANK YOU- FOR SHOPPING LOUE'S .
SEE REVERSE SIDE Fop RETURN Fil 1Ly,
STGHE HANAGER:  TREUUR HHEZCUA

i

LUUE"S PRICE HAICH GUARANTEE
FUR MORE DEIRILS, WIsIf LOVES . COM/PRILENATCH

e FARAAARSARENA Y KRG AR LK A2 4 70 LEEEE RS EY T LR ER Y FEE e

¥ YOUR SPIHIONS CouNg §
* HEGISTER FOR 0 CHANCE 1o bE £
X UNE UE FIUE USS300 WINNERS DRANN MON{HLY! ¥
* TREGISTHESE EN EL SBRFED RENSUAL p
* PABA-SER-UNODE L0S CINCG GANADURES DF US$5000
¥ *
* REGISTER BY COMPLEIING B GUEST SATTSFACTION SukuEy
¥ WITHIN ONE WEEK A1: u . loves con/suruey +
* VOGR 10w 20566 2528 29 *
+ 4
L3 NI PUREHASE NECESSHRY T ENTER OR UIN. ]
mmmWMMPmmmquMIM!HWUWMIumwwm

A

S

GEFTCTAL KULES & UINNERS A7 UL TS . con/eur ve

AARAARRE AR LR AAKRARE R nn Khddodosadhaisgbiogiis i

STURE: 25

O STAPLES

Store:
’
Lowes
Date:
[0-5 ~ 1%
Amount:

f50.5/

Reimbursed To:

‘\D@'se_é‘zalﬁg_

VADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:
-"/-.:'
[ 2.2 /17 5
[ QU AR
' i il
4
Expense:

/7 /. 7
N - L 5
i ,éwfz-véw"“’; ]

Approval:

g
”;qu/tﬁ 2019

Q?/ / f —
~ \ ] / M . y Z’z‘f’f’fﬂ‘

Rev. 8/18



PLACE RECEIPT HERE

TAPE REC

¥ CVS pharmacy’

3361 MARKET ST
RIVERSIDE, Ccha 92501
951‘680.1145j

REG#03 TRN#9312 CSHR11394 177 STR#8897

Helped by: SONIA

ExtraCare Card #: ERARXXR%D916

1 CVS ALCH 70% 1602 2.497
1 B360 NL REMOVR NOR 2.797
1 CVS ALLG NSL SPRY 6.29T7

TTEMS

SUBTOTAL 11.57
CA 8.75% T 1.01
TOTAL 12.58
CHARGE 12.58
HRRRRRRARA 2005 CH

[CAN EXPRESS *ERRRERRAHA2005
7T VEDE 819856

L

CVM: 5E0300
TVR(S5): 0000008000
TSI(98): E800
CHANGE 00

e

3508 8978 3189 3120 38
Returns with receirt, sublect to
CVS Return Policy, thru 01/13/2019

Re?.-’ prount jg haewd price
afie SLI 8.
M

) STAPLES

/ Amount;

.A.DMIN APPROVAL/ONLY

/
¥/2.5%
/

Reimbursed To:

<,

Expense:

Approval:

Rev. 8/18



TAPE RECE L u E.s®

LOWE'S HoME CENTERS, LLC
14333 BEAR VALLFy ROAD
VICTORVILLE, g 92392 (760) 949-9565

- BALE -
SALESH: FSTLANET 13 TRANSH: 7564747 10-26-18

137 HGC 4-F1X100-FT ORANGE § 28.97
293566 1.88-IN ¥ 35-YD GORTLLA 26.94

e 8.98
147179 § 8-pr ADJUSTABLE ToGGLE 12.96
b

20 :
65511 ARW 1250-CT 9/16-IN T50 2.88
91428 ARW 1250-CT 3/8-IN 150 5 3.22
SUBTOTAL: 74.97
TAX: 5.81
INVOICE 7989 ToTAL. 80.78

DEBIT: 0.78
BIT XXOKKXXKKXXK28 16 AMOUNT : 80. 78 AUTHCD: 05191
SWIPED REFI0: 100107140001 10/26/18 14:19: 29
TRACE: 00095415

PURCHASE CASH BACK TOTAL DEBIT
80.78 0.00 80.78
RE: 1001 TERMINAL: 7 10/26/18 14:19:07
" OF ITEMS PURCHASED -

( 2 8
“AJLUDES FEES, SERVICES AND SPECIAL ORDER ITEMS

AT

THANK YOU FoR SHOPPING L OWE's .
SEE REVERSE SIDE Fop RETURN PoLICY,
STORE MANAGER: TINo HARTND

LONE'S PRICE MATCH GUARANTEE
FOR MORE DETAILS, VISIT LOWES. COM/PRICEMATCH
mmmmmmwmmmmwmmm«mmmmmmmmmmm*mmmmnm
YOUR OPINIONS COUNTY
REGISTER FOR 4 CHANCE T0 Bf
ONE OF FIVE Usg300 HINNERS ORAWN HONTHLY
IREGISTRESE £N FL SORTEQ" HENSUAL
PARA SER UNO DE LOS CINCO GANADORES DE US$300!

REGISTER By COMPLETING A GUEST SATISFACTION SURVEY
WITHIN ONE Wk AT: ww.lowes.cnm/survey
YOoUuR 19 #07989 1001 299

***i*i**i*

* N0 PURCHASE NECESSARY To ENTER OR win.
* YOID WHERE PRONIBITED, NUST BE 18 gp OLDER To ENTER.
¥ OFFICIAL RULES & WINNFRS AT. ww_luwes.com/survey K

3
i***i***ii**:

5TAPLES

Store:
!
[;,«7kxjue.f5
Date:
[0-2p -3
Amount:

¥%0.7¢

Reimbursed To:

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

Expense:

A o/
/N .
/ sty ‘Z{;L'f’?'/}h{i"

Approval:

/ A / T - Lol i

A

L

5924112:E£5;;:?yf244r{- f/,fii{éiz’/iiz'i;;zéy

mmmmmmmmmmmmm Kk 3 KR
e STORE: 1001 ‘ i 19:07 -

Rev. 8/18



PLACE RECEIPT HERE

TAPE RECEIPT FLAT,DO NOT FOLD RECEIPTS - NO STAPLES

More saving.
@] More doing.”

STORE MANAGER DANA_HOFFMAN@HOMEDEPOT.COM
15150 BEAR VALLEY RD VICTORVILLE CcA

0665 00058 44386 10/26/18 02:44 pM
SELF CHECK out

817086020583 14/3 50'HSKY <p>
14/3 50" HUSKY EXTENSION CORD
5825.97

i 129.85
6970670970221 POWER STRIP <A>
g@gAgg 6 OUTLET POWER STRIP 4 CORD

17.94

SUBTOTAL 147, 7¢

SALES TAX 11. 4

TOTAL $159.2¢
XOOXKKNNNN2816 DEBIT

UsD$ 159.24

AUTH CODE 770158
AID AOD00000980840 US DEBIT

(VAL

0665 58 44386 10/26/2018 7714
RETURN POLICY DEFINITTONS

POLICY ID  DAYS  poLICY EXPIRES ON
1 80 01/24/2019

***‘K*******‘K*******************‘k***‘k**‘x

DID WE NAIL IT?

ake a sl 1 i vev for a chance TO WIN
I U HUME DEPNT GIFT CARD

Date:

(0-20 (3

Amount;

#159.29

Reimbursed To:

Lenise (nkEn
ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

: - / t’;’f;"*’//zjf--"i 78
/

7

Expense:

N o =
VA e 7 o

7

Approval:

T ;o ;-
b {4 LOH

T

/ N § 7

) / M Ty

/fZ).“;:?)' 4 { // ;'4/,;,& L ‘iv\:—’/
(2 /'

I

Rev. 8/18



PLACE RECEIPT HERE

TAPE RECE

Smart&Final. Smarté&Final. ,
Warehuuse & Market Friend & Neighbor.
*x Welcome To Our Hesperia Store x»

Store #354

KA KKK KK KKK KKK K KRR KK KKK KKK KKK KR KKK KK KK
See Us On WEB www.smartandfinal .com
Cashier: Carlos
DATE 10/26/18 TIME 14:57:24

11.04 1h@§1.49 / 1b

Penguin Dry Ice 16.45 T
11.051b@$ 1.49 7/ 1b
Penguin Ory Ice 16.46 T
Checkstand Bags A0 tx
SUBTOTAL 33.01
Sales Tax 2.5%
TOTAL 35.56
Debit TENDER 35.56
Cash CHANGE .00

[OTAL NUMBER OF ITEMS THIS VISIT- > 2

sxxxx Electronic Payment Activity swww

1Ufgn/2018 14:58:23
5 DEBIT Entry Method: Chip
CARD #: KUKOOAUN2816
PURCHASE - APPROVED
AUTH CODE ;585212
Mode : Issuer
ALD: AQ000000280840
[VR: 8000048000
IAD: 06010A03A02000
1S1: 6800
ARC: 00
TC; N . EGBBIBE1D524D6RY
MID: 287992 TID: 001 SEQ: 031922
Total : UsD$ 35.56

PIN VERIFIED

xxxxx Electronic Pavment Activity wxxsw

14:58;28 ~ OP# 810097639 10/26/18
Term: 3 Trans # 120 Store # 359
THANE L0 F Lk SHOPDT

IF=BFEf*
e ! "‘NA(JI r

STAPLES

Store:

Date:

[0 =24 =%

Amount;

# 35 .5y

Reimbursed To:

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

T;Zfééiﬁfﬂfa»tda,
7
Expense:

27, |
(i,«’ff?Zifi<2i jfjgjjpfyﬁi,zf;xizb

Approval:

Y
d ~ i . C
E\Jlfiﬁiw / L?< dﬁ{) ( -f
{ﬁ' ,‘4".‘ e .
i j — &r-%-”?/f’( ./EV Jf‘/ff/pj{
v /
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TAPE RECEIPT FLAT.DO NOT FOLD RECEIPTS - NO STAPLES

Store:
Rimida Q;cgag P
Date:

RPS RIVERSIDE PARKIN

3750 MARKET STREET [ q -
RIVERSTOE, Ca. 92501 = o [3
67

Yh1BN2 31

sale
XXXKKAKXKNXD32 Amount:
Entry Netiod: Chip
Total: $  5.00 #s.00
AR 4415

Inv H: 0000GRG08 oo Code: 04147
Aeorvd: Online :

Reimbursed To:
VISh GFRIT . .
ADD: ARLEt0 Qenise  CGnfHn
~ TVR: 80 88 00 & 6 . : e
TS1: 68 60 ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY
4 Location:
e L
DX / S0
Expense:

7’3&4@%‘;’5-‘“}?@/ A
’ 7

Approval:

/
2t Mg

Rev. 8/18
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TAPE RECEIPT FLAT.L

. I
| LU0 0L wndngd ET) ways
HSL’-‘;‘J 2 fue 10 a.m-j al} 40 e 159]

Heln Street 76
2278 N Main ot
Rlverside, Ca, 30591

MAIN =T 76

BEEE1 33278

2273 MAIN ST
RIVERSIDE .
M /E 2815 34452888
BY:53:45 By

=)

&
b
2E1F

VISA

INVOICE 214747

AUTH BE-446274
HEFEBEBS111B1BE14?
PUMP# 4

REGULAR CR 17,2655
FRICE/GAL %3, 70y
FUEL ToOTaL ¥ BS.FE

CREDIT T RS.ER

COMPLETION
SUIFE Exp.Datare e
Batch: 26 Seg tun: 35

Term 10: 4

ZIP ENTERED
fiorkstation 10: &g
Your opdnion
counts! Enter tp
Win 1 of 68 g25
gas gift caraz! )
Provide feecbars
i, gasuisit. con

Complate & Survey
Wt gasuisat, com
Register To Wir

V STAPLES

Store:

Main Sk Tl

Date:

[[~]0-%

Amount:

Reimbursed To:

/A

m

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location;
<~ oy
)L/.:/ (ol

Expense:

— ,/Eff

Approval:

. /9 7014

//_ : "/1-‘
Bard /|7y
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Welcome To
Del Taco #0347
17292 Main St
Store # (760) 244-8262
www .deltaco.com/contactus

DENISE

Host: CATHY
Cashier: CONNIE
DENISE

11/14/2018

8:11 AM
ANN78R

Order Type: Dine In

Epic Chorizo & Egg
Simply Orange (4 @2.59) 1
Bacon Breakfast Burrito (3 63.59) 1t
Grande Scrambler Meal :
Epic Chorizo & Egg
Macho Drink 0
Self Sery

Small Hashbrown Sticks (4 0.89)
Meal 15 Carne Asada

Carne Asada Breakfast Bur

Small Hashbrown Sticks

Simply Orange 0.n

(SN os]

Sm Fry

Strawberry Lemonade

4-Donut Bite (2 81.00)

1/21b Red

Bacon Breakfast Roller

Breakfast Taco

Med Drink (2 €2.19)
(2)Self Serv

Egg & Chz Breakfast Burr (2 @2.89) ! o

value Taco (3 €0.79) .57

Macho Drink 249
Self Serv

P e o ) —

FrpckbEkkakiGet §1 OFFFrehRroRk
Just a few minutes and you get $1 off
your next visit on purchases of $3 or
more (coupon #104) from THIS Del Taco
1k NEW SURVEY!!! *E¥
1) Visit http://myopinion.deltaco.com or
call 949 299 1033 and enter this code:

l an7? 991 D

T HERE
D RECEIPTS - NO STAPLES
Store
Dot T
Date:
Il -14-1%
2! v g the Amount:

. coowae _$0%.90

Net'vaIid.with any coupons or discounts

Subtotal 63.94  Reimbursed To:
% Tax 4.96 M «
se (1¥an
e In Total 66 .90 APPROVAL ONLY
srCard OOOKKXXRXT929 68.90 AT TR
*h:548781 Location:
WE ARE HIRING FOR ALL POSITIONS!
» offer a work enviornment that is ;;7 /f‘ '
pam-Oriented, Fast-Paced, and Fun! L Liia
Flexible Scheduling, Great Pay 7
Meal Discounts )
Growth & Advancements Expense:
To Apply: Text DelTaco to 242424 =
or visit Deltaco.com/Careers ‘ Lk“gﬁdi
--- Check Closed --- ;213%741/
Approval:
i;;gﬁdx . / u(
2o
198786856925 ﬂjﬁmq
PRI ; Fk ,1 ,' vvﬁ?
FrERERE 4k ﬁ/ ‘ /

e ——

Rev. 8/18



TAPE RECET

|
' J8Tuse3 0} ugdnos ey 05|
ise 23 fue o samad ay 40 635 sen!

Wain Strest 76
2278 M. Main st
Flversige, Ca, 92586

MAIN ST 76
BEE1E1 33270

2278 MAIN ST

RIVERS IDE , [
11/87/2818 344505 -
B3:31:89 Py

7829
DEBIT

INVOICE 2mzgqs
AUTH BE-6454 3@
HEFSJBEE11@?1BEBED

_FUMPE 42
REGULAR CR 16. 2835
FRICE;GAL $3. 9499
FUEL ToTaL g G542
DEBRIT ¥ 65,12
Detit W 10; g2
004
Terminal Seq Mum: 963124
COMPLET 00

SWIPE Exp. Date b fiok
Batc: 54 Seq liup: ¢
Term 10: 42
Horkstation 10: gg
Tour aptndan

counts! Enter tg
Win 1 of 53 425

985 gift cards!11
Provide feedhack
i, gasuisit, oo

Coplete 4 Surye,
WML gaziiait, com
Raglster To win

HUPTS - NO STAPLES

Date:

=0 =%

Amount:

;ﬁ‘ (05 -| B

Reimbursed To:

e

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

so/so

Expense:

| Jo e
Lyl
ey

Approval:

(‘)W ki Lo(9

and Sl
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TAPE RECEIPT

5
Qi

5t: 254 fApple Valley
APPLE UALLEY ROAD
19201 Bear Valley Road
fApple Ualley CA 92308

HalloweenPorchlightCover14. 9x
HalloweenParch! ightCover1d . 9y
Hiil 1ownF lockediaserCuthaskdss
Hal lowPolysthiskUtchHatu/Rose
Hal TaueenPUCSearylaskissti 103
HalloweenPVCSearyaskissti703
HallouP1steSkul 18t tuHal Fask/
HalTouPsteSkul 1Bt tutal fiasks
HallouPlsteSkul 18t tutal fHask/

@ L9999 0.9999
9998 0.9999
9998 0.9999
1,99 1.1900
9993 0.9999
9599 0.9999
9999 0.9399
9999 0.9909
9999 0.4999

L= = =

[N 1

L=

= =

Ha 1 TouP1steSkul 1Bt tatal filask/ { 5999 0.9899
HalicuPTsteskal 1Bttual fiasks 1 g 99989 0,4999
_HallouPisteSkul 1Bttnta) fask/ 1 a 8998 0.9999
lsteikul 1Bt tnta) fask/ 1 a 9949 g.9999
steskullittnHalthask/ 1 @ 44999 0.9999

$14.99

$1.16

il $i6.15

ARD $16.15

IE REXKERRRRRRTEG HE $16.15
16 09:02:51 AW 254 1 109485 4041
174735 Aporaved

HASTERCARD
(10 ADODODO0OA D1

Exchange i Store Credit
Within § days of purchase
Up to 9 Ttens yith receipt
seasanal itens arp final sale
Thanks for Shopping!

I

8 09:0204 0254 01 4041 Sulna

L3349

Tell us how we’re doing!

Uisit WU TELL99.CON and
conklete a quick survey for i
chance to uwin a $100 9ift card
Thanks far Shapping!

T
T
I
I

— 4 = — — — —d

A\PLES

Date:

[0-2%"~/%

~ Abwm

Amount:

Reimbursed To:

N APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

Z#ﬁ’zﬁczw
/

Expense:

N 7 - /
s /4 & ’
> s 7
GA ;’,/ / (L
— 7

Approval:

Rev. 8/18



PLACE RECEIPT HERE

TAPE RECEIPT FLAT.DO NOT FOLD RECEIPTS - NO STAPLES

Date:

[0-23~]%

Amount;

¥ 2.00

Reimbursed To:

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY

Location:

Expense:

774(, ney e 7 /2 be—
= 7

Approval;

’)/m /7 , 2919

7
¥ . 7

Rev. 8/18



PLACE RECEIPT HERE

TAPE RECEIPT FLAT.DO NOT FOLD RECEIPTS - NO STAPLES

IMPERIAL STATIONS #3
L3063657 37001

3315 14TH 5T
RIVERSIDE , CA
92581

11/85/2618 366255213
18:18:16 am

HRKK HHKH HKMHN 3530
Debit

INVDICE P8A93m

AUTH 277658

PUMP# 7
DIESEL 18.944G
FRICE/GAL $3.959

FUEL TOTAL % 75.@8

DEBIT $ 75.80

Custaoner-aetivated Purchase/Capture
Sequence Nunber 51421

Shiped

APFROVED 277656

Date:

[l =09 =\

Amount;

{ 75.00

Reimbursed To:

ADMIN APPROVAL ONLY
Location:

N S o
Expense:

4

___,‘/_- v “ =
7 ’/’6 i"/ [:'/ Le—
J//M" - s -
7 V4

Approval:

G /9 2019

h 4/ < i
(Joran / /W/“‘/
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PLACE RECEIPT HERE

TAPERECEWTFLATIX)NOT?0LDR%£EW1&»NO&IAHJ&

Date:

[/ =09~1%
IMPERIAL STATIONS @3
L30636573700

3315 14TH =T
RIVERSIDE , CA
oo Amount:
11/09/26818 3625822

10:23:88 am g 75_.00

HEKK HHKY Mauu 3532
Debit

INVOICE @spoas _ _
AUTH 386038 Reimbursed To:

PUMP# 7
DIESEL 15.9445G
PRICE/GAL $3.95g

FUEL TOTaL ¥ 75.8m

DEBIT $ 75.08
::::::’::::‘_'::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: %‘(:\‘/5 C)
Lustoner-activated Purchase/ Capture £=
Sequence Mumber 51423
Swiped Expense:
AFPROVED 35036
7 4 oy
/ /M'ﬂ’ﬂff"’/;{%z‘f—’:
7 /7
Approval:

{ilﬁﬁu /li 20/7‘
J/?} 'mef’( 5 ///u/%?/

Rev. 8/18



ENCORE

education

corporation

Exhibit
5.6

January 14, 2019

Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036

Fax: (760) 956-3338
www.encorehighschool.com

Sites:

Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

-

INFO:
DOJ REPORT

~



http://www.encorehighschool.com/

JUNIORIS NIOR

HIGH SCHOOL arts

Human Resources:

D.O.J. Reporting —January 11 — 2019

All new hires have been cleared through the DOJ. Nothing new to report.

Ashlin Barkdull
Human Resources

Executive Offices, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036,
3666 University Avenue, Riverside, CA 92501. 951.824.1358 encorehighschool.com
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Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036

Fax: (760) 956-3338
www.encorehighschool.com

Sites:

Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

-

INFO:
MONTHLY REPORTS - ATTENDANCE

~
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Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036

Fax: (760) 956-3338
www.encorehighschool.com

Sites:

Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

-

INFO:
KITCHEN LEAD REPORT — ZACHARY CAINES

~



http://www.encorehighschool.com/

& fICORE

Junior & Senior High School

for the Performing and Visuval Arts

CAFETERIA REPORT

Encore High School — Hesperia, California

CAFETERIA REPORT FOR DECEMBER 2018

NUMBER OF MEALS SERVED:

Date # Breakfast Served # Lunch Served

12/3/2018 148 266
12/4/2018 142 285
12/5/2018 182 273
12/6/2018 151 296
12/7/2018 154 279
12/10/2018 130 282
12/11/2018 165 238
12/12/2018 152 266
12/13/2018 153 305
12/14/2018 129 262
Totals 1,506 2,752

Data compiled by: Joseph Thibodeaux
Reviewed by:
Date: 12/14/2018



& fICORE

Junior & Senior High School

for the Performing and Visuval Arts

NUMBER OF LABOR HOURS USED:

Employee Name Weekly Hours
Zach Caines 50
Tammy Sullivan 50

Cindy Barnes 30

Desiree Huffine 30

Total Labor Hours 160

WEEKLY MATERIAL EXPENSES:

Date Vendor Amount
12/5/2018 | Preferred Meals $33.60
12/6/2018 | Preferred Meals $6,296.40
12/7/2018 | Preferred Meals $

12/9/2018 | Preferred Meals $

12/10/2018 | Preferred Meals $

12/11/2018 | Preferred Meals $100.80

12/12/2018 | Preferred Meals $33.60

12/13/2018 | Preferred Meals $5,689.60

12/14/2018 | Preferred Meals $

Total Preferred Meals $12,154

Data compiled by: Joseph Thibodeaux
Reviewed by:
Date: 12/14/2018



& fICORE

Junior & Senior High School

for the Performing and Visuval Arts

WEEKLY WASTE OF PRODUCT ON CAMPUS:

Date Item Description # of Units Cost per unit Total Cost
Discarded Waste
12/3/2018 | Southwest black bean & 2 $2.80 $5.60
cheese burrito
12/3/2018 | Teriyaki Chicken & Brown 5 $2.80 $14.00
Rice
12/4/2018 | Chicken Nuggets W/Potato 1 $2.80 $2.80
Rounds
12/4/2018 | BBQ Chicken W/Carrots 10 $2.80 $28.00
12/4/2018 | VVeggie Burger 13 $2.80 $36.40
12/5/2018 | Beef Chili Dog 32 $2.80 $89.60
12/5/2018 | Wheat Alfredo 2 $2.80 $5.60
12/12/2018 | Cheese Lasagna 26 $2.80 $72.80
Totals $254.80

MONTHLY INVENTORY OF PRODUCT ON CAMPUS:

Inventory on separate Correspondence.

Data compiled by: Joseph Thibodeaux

Reviewed by:
Date: 12/14/2018
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Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036

Fax: (760) 956-3338
www.encorehighschool.com

Sites:

Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

-

INFO:

FACILITIES MANAGER REPORT — CURTIS PETERSON

~



http://www.encorehighschool.com/

Maintenance Report for Hesperia & Riverside Campus

Keeping up on yearly and safety maintenance as of 2-14-19 all fire
extinguishers are due for service and heve been scheduled for
maintenance.

The Student Union Boys restroom door has been repaired as well
as the Boys restroom door at the 9th St. property.

All the vinyl letter and numbers have been installed on the
Hesperia campus noticing about 5 classrooms in the direct sun will
need replacing about every 6 months.

| was also able to complete the flickering fluorescent lights at the
9th St. building.

| have a replacement water faucet on order for our Hesperia
Campus located at the C building.

Continuing to replace rain damaged ceiling tile in the F building
since the last rain.

| was able to repair the handicap bar for the water faucet at the
Roosevelt Building on the Riverside Campus.

Installed a combination door lock on Pirate Radio door for a more
secured entry to the Radio Station.

Also did touch up painting in the Arts Building on the Riverside
Campus.

We also put locks on the Photo Class in the Arts building to better
secure all photo equipment.

Also continuing to replace rain damaged ceiling tiles in the Arts
Building since the last rain on the Riverside Campus.

- Curtis Peterson



Risk management Report

There was one training classes this Quarter First Aid/CPR/AED. Training done on
the Riverside Campus there were 6 team members certified the Riverside Campus
training was held on 11-29-18.

There were 6 training classes this quarter First Aid/CPR/AED training on the
Hesperia Campus. Training was held on 11-6-18, 11-13-18, 12-4-18, 12-5-18, 12-
11-18, 1-8-19, 38 team members attended the training and are all certified on
their mandatory training.

There will be continued weekly training until all team members are certified.

- Curtis Peterson
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Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036

Fax: (760) 956-3338
www.encorehighschool.com

Sites:

Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

-

INFO:

THEATER AND VOCAL MUSIC DEPARTMENT CHAIR REPORT — MICHAEL
NEVAREZ, HESPERIA AND DANIELLE PAHMEIER, RIVERSIDE

~



http://www.encorehighschool.com/

JUNIOR SENIOR
HIGH SCHOOL arts

THEATRE/ VOCAL DEPARTMENT - HESPERIA

We kicked off the year with a fun Carnival with new fundraisers and activities, such as the “Raveyard” Laser
Maze

Theatre Troupe and Junior High Playhouse teams participated at the Fall DTASC Festival in October with Encore
Riverside, and had a fun time competing and supporting each other. Encore won the Spirit Award and placed in
several categories.

The Theatre Troupe also attended the RoleAbout Theatre Festival in Irvine, for the first time.

Over 20 students inducted into the International Thespian Society on November 15t

Senior director Hunter Hobson’s original play Azura had a successful run November 29™"-December 1, with a
student show added the following week. The production involved over 30 students from Drama, Acting, Musical
Theatre, Stage Tech, and collaboration with the Crique Department. The Costume Design students that designed
the costumes for the show were also thrilled to be invited to the added student show to see their costumes in
action on stage.

Theatre Troupe, Jr. High Playhouse, Jr. Choir, and Madrigals performed at the Barne’s & Noble fundraiser on
December 8™, 2018. Costume Design provided costumes for the Theatre and Ballet performances.

Theatre Conservatory students from both campuses attended a field trip to the Ahmanson Theatre in LA to see
the musical Come From Away, and got to stay for a Q&A with the cast and crew of the show.

Costume Design kids in levels 2, 3, 4, & 5 are currently cranking out costumes for the Ambassador production
Around the World in 90 Minutes, which opens next week.

0 They also made costumes for the following productions this semester: The Wiz, Michael Jackson, Jungle
Book, Azura, Happily Ever After, Gilligan’s Island, The Brothers Grimm Tale Spectaculathon, and Macbeth
of the Caribbean.

Mr. Nevarez and Mrs. Gibson swapped classes for a week to give each other’s classes Audition monologue/song
workshops and technique training, to prepare them for the Semester 2 Auditions on November 8"
Productions that are currently in rehearsal are: Peter and the Star Catcher (Nevarez), Sweeney Todd (Gibson),
Charlie Brown (Merket)
Students in the Stage Tech class have been assigned to the second semester productions and are collaborating
with the directors.
All classes are beginning their finals on Monday 1/14

0 All choir classes are learning how to sight read

O All Drama/Acting student’s finals are a mini mock assessment to prepare them for the Spring
Ms. Hope’s Madrigals and Women’s Chorus, Gibson’s Musical Theatre and Voice Tech, and Mr. Nevarez’'s Acting
classes are working on their performances for the International Fair on 1/19.
As a department we are working together to build excitement for the pre-conservatory students to assess into
the Conservatory

Mr. Nevarez

Corporate Office, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036. www.encorehighschool.com



Here's what my kids are working on:

Jr High Playhouse - researching fundraisers, finding material for Spring DTASC (which will be in April)
It's all Shakespeare, so we're giving the kids plenty of time to focus on the language.

Musical Theatre | is working on a compilation of songs from the musical West Side Story for Festival.
Musical Theatre Il is working on a piece from Will Rogers Follies for Festival.

Musical Theatre Ill is working on a piece from Come From Away.

Mr. Brando and I, along with Ms. Taira Kendricks just completed preliminary auditions for the Spring
;nou:ixcgtlég!airspray. Callbacks will take place on Monday. This show is going to be BIG. We're already

| hope this information is helpful. Please let me know | can help with anything else.

Happy Friday!!!

Kind regards,

Rachele Barton
Certificated Teacher, Musical Theatre

Corporate Office, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036. www.encorehighschool.com



JUNIORISENIO

HIGH SCHOOL x&is

This year, so far, we have performed for many community events, including--

Madrigals:

Mission Inn Run--National Anthem

Palm Springs Aerial Tramway--Holiday Choral Pieces

Riverside Festival of Lights--Holiday Choral Pieces

Palm Springs Rotary Club--Holiday Choral Pieces (this performance included a $250 honorarium for
the choral account)

Women's Choir: Dales Senior Center--Holiday Choral Pieces.

In addition, Madrigals and Women's Choir performed at both Carnivals and at the Riverside Barnes &
Noble Fundraiser. Concert Choir also performed at the Riverside Carnival. Madrigals performed at
an on-campus rally in December. There is another one scheduled for March. Madrigals, Women's
Choir, Concert Choir and Jr. Choir Il will be performing at the Encore Arts Festival on January 19.
This year's SCVA spring festivals, as well as the Music in the Parks festivals and competitions have
not yet been scheduled. I'm waiting for approval and the official calendar notice for two SCVA
festivals--Madrigals on May 20; Women's Choir on March 28. The Music in the Parks festivals have
not been scheduled yet.

Awards

Since 2016-2017, the first year we had multiple choirs, the choirs have won many awards. We have
earned six Superior Ratings--the highest rating possible, and four first place trophies. In addition, at
the 2017 Music in the Parks festival, we took home for Encore the coveted Esprit de Corps trophy,
given to the best school represented at the festival.--This included competing with over 30 choirs and
bands.

Highlights of our awards broken down by year:

2016-2017

SCVA Festival: Jr. Choir Il--Superior

Music in the Parks Festival: Madrigals--Superior and 1st place; Concert Choir--Superior and 1st
place; Madrigals and Concert Choir--Esprit de Corps Trophy.

2017-2018

SCVA Festival: Madrigals--Superior

Music in the Parks Festival: Madrigals--Superior and 1st place; Women's Choir--Superior and 1st
place.

The 2018 and 2019 festivals take place this spring.

Thank you so much!!

Bob

Robert W. Hekel, M.A.

Certificated Teacher
Director of the Choirs, Riverside Campus

Encore Education Corporation
www.encorehighschool.com

Corporate Office, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036. www.encorehighschool.com
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Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036

Fax: (760) 956-3338
www.encorehighschool.com

Sites:

Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*
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ENCORE PIRATES QUESTIONNAIRE — HESPERIA AND RIVERSIDE

~
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Encore Pirate Questionnaire

458 responses

When year did you start at Encore? (Please write the year you started)

458 responses

150
118 (25.8%)
132%558%)
100 86 (18.8%)
76 (16.6%)
50

12 (2.6%) 16 (3.5%)
2
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What grade are you in NOW?

458 responses
@ 7th Grade
@ 8th Grade
@ 9th Grade
0.8% @ 10th Grade
@ 11th Grade
V! @ 12th Grade

After enrolling did you...

458 responses

@ Assess into a conservatory (1
on 1 Audition)

@ Attend a workshop & choose

your arts classes.
@ Not Sure

@ | did not assess at all




If you did assess, which conservatory were you placed in?

458 responses

@ Cirque
@ Dance
@ Music
@ Technical Arts
@ Theatre

‘ @ Visual Arts

@ Vocal
14.6% @ Career Arts

14.4% @ | did not assess

What conservatory are you currently in?

458 responses

@ Cirque

@ Dance
/ @ Music
@ Technical Arts
14.6% @ Theatre
/ @ Visual Arts
@ Vocal
@ Career Arts
@ Not Sure




Encore Pirate Questionnaire

708 responses

When year did you start at Encore? (Please write the year you started)

708 responses

300
224 (31.6%)
200
138 (19.5%)
108 (15.3%)
100 76 (10.7%)
51 (7.2%)
28 (4%) 35 (4.9%)
1 (. (A5(A5 (5051263 B-(FL (A5 (55 (% (24(6.(01825(0.325(0.335(0.42:((1.(04145(0.64€((1. (1 ((15(0%1
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What grade are you in NOW?

707 responses

@ 7th Grade
@ 8th Grade
@ 9th Grade
@ 10th Grade
@ 11th Grade
@ 12th Grade

After enrolling did you...

708 responses
\
Not Sure
129 (18.2%)

@ Assess into a conservatory (1
on 1 Audition)

@ Attend a workshop & choose
your arts classes.

@ Not Sure
@ | did not assess at all




If you did assess, which conservatory were you placed in?

708 responses

@ Cirque

@ Dance

@ Music

@ Technical Arts
@ Theatre

‘ @ Visual Arts
9.9% ® Vocal

@ Career Arts

@ | did not assess

What conservatory are you currently in?

708 responses

@ Cirque
@ Dance
@ Music

4 18.6% @ Technical Arts
@ Theatre
@ Visual Arts
' ® Vocal
@ Career Arts
@ Not Sure

19.6%




Full Name

708 responses

Dillon Kirschbaum

Trinity King

Emma Jean Holman

Stephanie Eriksen

Ajeng Maya Safitri

Angelina Galvez (I am also in the visual arts conservatory)
Daniel Julian Patterson

Leah Basnight... I'm in level 4 for both Dance & Vocal
Emily Gabler

Kaylee Forbes

Makayla cammack

Jordan Nathaniel Gibson

Isabel Gilman

Erica Serene Gilman

Raquel Estrada

Jennah Bennett.

Camille Wilkin
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Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

-

INFO:

RIVERSIDE

ENCORE PARENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES — HESPERIA AND

~
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PARENT ADVISORY Committee

AGENDA FOR 9/27/2018 5:00 PM

1. Dean of Students introductions (5 minutes)
2. Go over the purpose of the PAC (5 minutes)
3. Call for people that would like to run for office (5 minutes)
a. President
b. Vice President
€. Secretary
4. DISCUSSION - (10 minutes)
a. Each person interested in being a part of the Officers for the Parent Advisory Committee
can talk about who they are and why they would like to be a part of the officers.
b. For any office that has more than one person running, the parents at the meeting will
vote to see who will be the officers.
5. Once officers are chosen, they will run the meeting. The Dean of Student and the Department
Chair present will help.
6. EVENTS - THIS MONTH — CARNIVAL- (5 minutes)
a. Call for parents to help get more parent volunteers and participation this year to help
with booths,
b. What can be done? How can the PAC help us get parents involved.
€. Donations and working the booths
7. ACADEMICS — THE SPSA — (20 minutes)
a. If enough parents are present, divide into 6 groups one for each goal for the SPSA.
i. Have them make a list of things that they have seen as parents for that goal.
ii. Have parents make a list of ideas that could help us reach our goals
8. PHILANTHROPY — PARENT FUND (10 minutes)
a. Ideas on how parents can help raise money for a fund to help kids that can’t afford high
school to get the extras that make high school special (prom tickets, caps/gown, etc.)
9. ADJOURNMENT — Next meeting October 25 at 5:00 pm

Corporate Office, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345, 760.949.2036. www.encorehighschool.com
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G M I s Denise Griffin <ceo@officerteam.com>

Encore Parent Advisory Committee Minutes - Don't miss out!

Encore High School/ Encore Education Corp. <info@encorehighschool.com> Sat, Sep 29, 2018 at 1:30 PM
Reply-To: info@encorehighschool.com
To: ceo@officerteam.com

September 29, 2018

PARENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Hello Parents/Guardians,

We held our PAC meeting last night and | am happy to say we had a really good meeting. There were lots
of good ideas and we elected our PAC Board members.

Our Next Meeting Is October 25, 2018 in Room F29 at 5 PM
Meet our Parent Advisory Committee Board

PAC President — Lisa Fox

Lisa Fox is proud to be an Encore parent. Her children are very involved in the performing, visual and
musical arts programs that are provided by Encore. Therefore, continuing these programs at Encore is

PAC Vise President - Christa Banton, EdD. MS, MSP, L MFT
___—____—_—l—d__l__d___

Dr. Christa Banton is an Encore parent to a lively 7th grader. She has a doctorate degree in Educational
Leadership and two masters degrees in psychology. She currently works for the County of San
Bernardino as a supervisor. She also teaches psychology courses at the university level mostly online.
She is also a writer, researcher, and a Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist.

PAC Secretary — Elena Jacobo-Soria

My name is Elena Jacobo-Soria, | have a bachelors in Sociology and | am a stay at home mom. | have a
seventh grader daughter attending Encore and she loves it. | love volunteering and helping at my
daughter's school because is a way for me to say thank you to the school and her teachers. Being
involved in my daughter's school education is very important to myself and family. It is an honor to serve
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the PAC as the secretary of the board.

Parent Advisory Committee Board Minutes
Meeting Held 9/27/18

Encore staff present: Stephen Nutter, Dean of Students
Cynthia Roach, Dean of Academics
John Parker, RLA Department Lead/Teacher
Jim Barkdull, Executive Manager of Information Technology

The meeting started around 5:15 pm and it started with the introduction of Mr. Nutter.

With the help of Mr. Nutter, the Dean of Students, a professor, and the few parents(6) presents at the
meeting we were able to establish our parent advisory committee.

Elected PAC Board Members: President- Lisa Fox
Vice President- Dr. Christa Banton
Secretary- Elena Jacobo

Once the officers were chosen, the board took over the meeting.
Carnival

1. Largest fundraiser of the year

2. October 27, 2018

3. We need parents to volunteer to help out the team booths.
4. Mr. Nutter will send the booth list

How to bring more parents to the Advisory Committee

1. Pass Out flyers to the students to pass to their parents

2. Get a banner that lets parents know about the meetings

3. Pass out flyers at the pick-up/drop-off line

4. Keep putting the announcement on the school website, Facebook, and Instagram
5. Try signing up at signupgenius.com(free site)

6. Mr. Nutter would look into it and show it to the board

The board decided to talk about academics after the carnival

1. One of the parents at the meeting asked about the deadline for SIPSA.

Funding
1. How to raise money for our group?
2. Business sponsorship

3. Have a booth at the carnival?
4. Mr. Nutter would look into it

Next meeting is October 25 at 5:00 PM

President adjourned the meeting around 6:30 PM and vice president second adjourn.

Our Next Meeting Is October 25, 2018 in Room F29 at 5 PM
Don't Miss It!

pt&searc...
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PARENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE
AGENDA FOR 11/29/2018 6:00 PM

Introductions

Approve 10/25/18 Minutes

Fundraising for PAC

Dec 8 Barns and Noble Book Fair

January 12th Encore Social Dance

January 19th International Festival

Academics

PAC SCOTTY Awards

ADJOURNMENT — Next meeting November 29 at 5:00 pm

XN~ WN =

Corporate Office, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345, 760.949.2036. www.encorehighschool.com



All PAC members are present,

Item #1: President Lisa Fox and Vice-president Christa Banton started the mecting with the

LCAP goals

--Mr. Nutter initiated by giving the members a copy of the LPAC goals.

The members started to give feedback on each of the following goals.

» Hire & retain highly qualified, credentialed teachers within the scope of subject area of
instruction for all core instruction,

o

Create a working climate where all teachers/staff members feel valued to increase
longevity in order reduce turn over. Keeping our great teachers happy would
prevent them from leaving the school and at the same time other teachers that get
hired would want to teach at Encore.

Consider adopting a teacher evaluation program that other school districts follow
in order to keep great teachers at Encore. Where teachers are evaluated in a matter
time of every year and after the fifth year every five years.

Consider hiring new teachers for the next school year by May in order to have
positions filled and ready to go at the start of a new school year to reduce the
number of classes that start out with a sub. In order for our students to have the
best education in the begging of the school year and not risk losing students to
other schools in the area.

Evaluate and adjust teacher pay yearly in order to compete with nearby districts
so Encore is recruiting the best teachers who want to stay at Encore.

» Engage a variety of methods to deliver adopted academic content and performance
standards as adopted by the state boards for all pupils including English Learners.

(e}

All teachers should be trained to provide instruction on Smarter Balance and SAT
preparation grades 7-12 in all English and math classes.

Create unit assessments and finals that resemble the Smarter Balanced summative
and performance tasks and SATs.

All students should be taught to mastery writing in the three genres tested:
Narrative, Expository, and Argumentative. Including citing, quoting,
paraphrasing, etc.

All students should be taught to mastery short response writing (1 to 3 paragraph
responses). See Smarter Balanced links below for sample questions.

Utilize the Smarter Balanced website resources for grades 7-11 in order to
properly prepare students and inform teachers.

All English and math teachers should teach the required academic vocabulary to
mastery in order to increase student understanding, achievement, and college
preparation. Students should be assessed on the required academic language for



both Smarter Balance and SATS. *Students will not do well if they are not
familiar with these terms.
©  Consider eliminating coloring worksheets in math (homework/extra credit) and
replace with real world problems that students need to draw/create/model and
solve.
©  Consider eliminating “Read page - and write a one page summary” and replace
with annotating articles, citing sources, paraphrasing, writing quality
introductions, body paragraphs, and conclusions, form quality arguments, and
write creative high quality narratives.
> Offer a wide variety of classes that enhance inclusion, engagement in school activities,
student appeal, and provides tools for college/university application.
©  Continue to provide a high quality arts program
Add additional arts programs not yet offered or ones previously offered
Continue to provide AP and honors courses
Add additional AP courses in other academic areas not yet offered
Incorporate semester awards for academic excellence (honors) in order to honor
and motivate students in their academic areas.
Continue to provide summer school courses.
© Provide SAT prep classes and/or have SAT prep built into all English and math
courses in high school.
» Continue to improve and maintain school facilities to create an improved school climate.
> Increase parental involvement and input in decision-making and participation in
programs.
O More advertisement for the PAC meetings
» Work to increase student achievement by filling in gaps in fundamental knowledge.
© Consider reviewing in coming state test scores or giving new students an
assessment that will provide teachers with the information needed to group
students according to their needs at the beginning of year school year...
©  Use beginning year, midyear, and end of year data to drive instruction.

O O 0 ©

@]

Item #2: Add a goal number 7 to the six goals that the school already has.
Goal number 7 would had to do with, How to maintain students from leaving Encore.
Find ways on keeping the students at Encore and also on bringing new students to the school.

Item #3: Mr. Nutter offered the parents of the board to come and see the classrooms during
school hours.

By doing this us parents would have a better view of what really is going on in the
classrooms. He mentioned that at times certain students are not even paying attention of what
going on in the classroom or what the teacher is doing for the lesson. He said we are welcome to
£o and see following Thursday with an email reminder.



Item #4: Our vice-president Christa, would rewrite the LCAP goals.
Item #5: Email Mr. Nutter for the fliers so we could invite parents to the PAC meetings.

Closing Items
--Next meeting scheduled for Thursday, December 13 at Spm.

--Meeting adjourned at 7:10.



Minutes 12-13-18
All PAC members are present.

Item #1: President Lisa Fox and Vice-president Christa Banton started the meeting by reviewing
the LCAP goals that were talked about in the last meeting.

The members started to review each of the goals action steps and for some goals, there were
some actions added to the draft.

> Goal #1-

o0 April- job fair to hire new teachers
> Goal #2-

o 21% Centry skills
> Goal #3-

0 Robotics Programs
0 Summer workshops
0 Not limiting students to other arts
» Goal #4-
0 Some non-renovated classrooms are not well taken care
= Renovations need to be done and finish
= The new renovated classrooms are very nice
Restrooms need some help
A lot of trash after lunch
Streamlining for safety on campus
There should be more TEAM work
= Mr. Nutter cannot do everything
0 Inspect the facilities
0 Radios for staff
» Goal #5-
0 Mid-year/End-year surveys
0 Letter from the board to invite parents to the PAC meetings and/or Board
meetings
0 Increase the communication to Art teachers
» Goal #6-
0 Scheduling is a big problem due to higher levels of certain Art classes.
The final draft of the LCAP goals should be ready and email to Mr. Nutter before the next
meeting.

O O 0O O

Item #2: Scottie Awards

Mr. Nutter asked if we could start the awards once again at the campus. These awards would be
for achievements that the students complete. The award would be given as a certificate, medal, or
trophies.



Item #3: Mr. Nutter offered the parents of the PAC to go to the Board meetings
The meetings are held every 2" Monday of the month on campus in room F29. The actual dates
are on the school website. For the next meeting, we would see who might be able to go.

Item #4: Our vice-president Christa, was able to take a tour and check out the campus with Mr.
Nutter.

She gave her feedback on what the campus needs and she was very amazed by the wonderful job
Mr. Nutter does to the school.

Item #5: Mr. Nutter has the PAC email ready for us.

Closing Items
--Next meeting scheduled for Thursday, January 31, 2019, at 5 pm.

--Meeting adjourned at 6:06.
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Hesperia

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345
— CLASSROOM F 29

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501
— CLASSROOM H1

Board Members:

Lenny Esposito, Board President
Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer
Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*

-

INFO:
LETTERMAN ACHIEVEMENTS POLICY

~



http://www.encorehighschool.com/

NIOR IS ENI

J OoR
HIGH SCHOOL arTs

Letterman Achievements
JUNIOR HIGH -

Students will be given awards at rallies, parties, special events or classes that can coincide with a Letterman’s
sweater for the following achievements:

Perfect Attendance
Honor Roll
High Honor Roll
Dean’s Honor Roll
Conservatory Participation
Team Participation

Junior High students earning the Letterman achievement will receive a small Letter “E” that is three inches tall.
This letter is meant to be smaller than the high school letter, but can still be used to adorn the high school jacket
once the student gets to high school.

After a Junior High Student receives a letter for their achievement every achievement award after that they will
receive a pin that coincides with the achievement. Students can have multiples of the same pins, but can only
receive one of each color letter.

HIGH SCHOOL -

Students will be given awards at rallies, parties, special events or classes that can coincide with a
Letterman’s Jacket for the following achievements:
Perfect Attendance

Honor Roll
High Honor Roll
Dean’s Honor Roll
Conservatory Participation
Team Participation

High school students earning the Letterman achievement will receive a Varsity sized Letter “E”. This letter is
meant to be placed on a Letterman’s sweater or jacket.

After a High Student receives a letter for their achievement every achievement award after that they will receive a
patch insert that coincides with the achievement that can be added to the letterman’s sweater or jacket. Students
can have multiples of the same insert patches, but can only receive one of each color letter.

While attending Encore each student can earn up to six letters, one of each letter color for

junior high and then high school.




LETTER COLORS AND THEIR SIGNIFICANCE

RED LETTER - Signifies achievement in academics. Students receive a red letter for perfect attendance and/or
honor roll cumulative 3.0 or higher.

WHITE LETTER — Signifies achievement in arts conservatories. Students receive a white letter for completion of
advanced conservatory classes with a letter grade of “A”. This is for any student that is in two or more
conservatory classes within a single conservatory for a complete school year.

BLACK LETTER - Signifies achievement in spirit on campus. Students receive a black letter for successfully being a
part of a team, completing participation in a major production or art show, completing a screenwriting short, and
other achievements that are not directly tied to a team.

A student can receive a maximum of one of each color junior high letter and then one of each color in high

school.

A student can purchase a letterman’s sweater or jacket. They can purchase these with cash, check or credit card in full, or place
them on lay away where parents can make bimonthly or monthly payments of $20 until the item is paid in full.

Letterman’s Qualifiers for each category:

RED LETTERS

Perfect Attendance — No tardies or absences for a full semester
Honor Roll — Cumulative GPA of 3.0 to 3.49 for the semester

High Honor Roll — Cumulative GPA of 3.5 — 3.99 for the semester
Dean’s Honor Roll — Cumulative GPA of 4.0 or higher for the semester

WHITE LETTERS
Dance Conservatory — Enrollment in two or more conservatory classes and earning an “A” grade on the semester
report card.

Cirque Acrobatics Conservatory — Enrollment in two or more conservatory classes and earning an “A” grade on the
semester report card.

Instrumental Music Conservatory — Enrollment in two or more conservatory classes and earning an “A” grade on
the semester report card.

Technical/Visual Arts conservatory - Enrollment in two or more conservatory classes and earning an “A” grade on
the semester report card.

Theater Arts Conservatory - Enrollment in two or more conservatory classes and earning an “A” grade on the
semester report card.

Vocal Music Conservatory - Enrollment in two or more conservatory classes and earning an “A” grade on the
semester report card.



BLACK LETTERS

ASB: Must earn an “A” in the course for the semester, have worked at least one student store shift per week, have
participated in a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled class time.

JR. HIGH ASB: Must earn an “A” in the course for the semester, have worked at least one student store shift per
week, have participated in a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled class time.

COSTUME DESIGN: Must have an “A” in the lab class and the lab study hall. Must have participated in a minimum
of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled class time.

MOCK TRIAL: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team and start
and complete a competition season.

AMBASSADORS: Must be enrolled in the Ambassador study hall class and receive an “A” in the class. Must attend
after school rehearsals. Must have participated in a minimum of 40 hours of after school rehearsal time and
complete all requirements for Ambassadors for at least one semester.

PIRATE RADIO/MEDIA: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team.
Must have completed one full school year in class and participated in a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside
of the regularly scheduled class time.

PIRATE SERVING CREW: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the
team. Must have participated in a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled class time
and completed one full year of service.

NATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the
team. Must have participated in one full year of service and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the
regularly scheduled class time.

CALIFORNIA SCHOLASTIC FEDERATION: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the
advisor of the team. Must have participated in one full year of service and a minimum of 40 hours of work time
outside of the regularly scheduled class time.

MADRIGALS: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team. Must
have participated in full year of service and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled
class time.

PIRATE DRUMLINE: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team.
Must have participated in one full year of service and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly
scheduled class time.

THESPIANS: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team. Must have
participated in one full year of service and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled
class time.



HIGH SC

BLACK LETTERS (CONTINUED)

EVENT PHOTOGRAPHY: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team.
Must have participated in one full year of service and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly
scheduled class time.

MAJOR PRODUCTION PARTICIPATION: Student must have been an active part of the entire production process as
either a tech or performer from beginning to end. Directors should turn in cast lists upon completion of each
show. Productions must have a two week blackout to be eligible for a Letter. Must have participated in one
complete season and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled class time.

YEARBOOK: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team. Must have
participated in one full year of service or one full year in the class and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside
of the regularly scheduled class time.

SCREENWRITING: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor. Must have
participated in one full school year in class and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly
scheduled class time.

COSPLAY: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team. Must have
participated in one full year and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled class time.

BASKETBALL: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team. Must
have participated in one full year and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled class
time.

BOWLING: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team. Must have
participated in one full year and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled class time.

HIP HOP TEAM: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team. Must
have participated in one full year and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled class
time.

SNOWBOARDING TEAM: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the
team. Must have participated in one full year and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly
scheduled class time.

THEATER TROUPE: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team.
Must have participated in one full year and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled
class time.

PRODUCTION X: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team. Must
have participated in one full year and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled class
time.



ENC;

SJUNIORISENIOR

HIGH SCHOOL arts

BLACK LETTERS (CONTINUED)

VARSITY DANCE TEAM: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team.
Must have participated in one full year and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled
class time.

JR. HIGH DANCE TEAM: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team.
Must have participated in one full year and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled
class time.

WORLD SCHOLARS: Must be an active participant and be signed off as a participant by the advisor of the team.
Must have participated in one full year and a minimum of 40 hours of work time outside of the regularly scheduled
class time.
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ENROLLMENT — JENNA SNOWBALL, RIVERSIDE AND LIN AHMED, HESPERIA

~
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JUNIOR SENIOR
HIGH SCHOOL arts

December Projected Enrollments — Riverside

NEW enrollments for 2018/2019 school year as of December 31, 2017 and then a
comparison of the amount of new enrollments we have for the 2019/2020 school year.

New As of As of
Enroliments 12/31/2017 12/31/2018
7th Grade 41 28
8th Grade 2 1
9th Grade 6 8
10th Grade 0 0
11th Grade 0 0
12th Grade 0 0

Jenna Snowball
Enrollment/Marketing Manager
Encore Education Corporation
3800 Main St.

Riverside, CA 92501

(951)824-1358

Corporate Office, 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345. 760.949.2036. www.encorehighschool.com
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ClitonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

CliftonLarsonAllen

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Encore Education Corporation
Hesperia, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Encore Education Corporation (the
Organization), a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, which comprise the statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and
functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A member of
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Board of Directors
Encore Education Corporation

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to on page 1 present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Organization’s financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 15,
2018 on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness on the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

W@W P

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Glendora, California
December 15, 2018
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ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Encore Jr. Sr.
High School for Encore High
the Performing School for the

and Visual Arts  Arts - Riverside  Eliminations Total
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2288921 $ 1562856 $ - $ 3,851,777
Accounts Receivable - Federal and State 812,529 927,238 - 1,739,767
Intracompany Receivable 205,500 - (205,500) -
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 29,941 27,348 - 57,289
Total Current Assets 3,336,891 2,517,442 (205,500) 5,648,833
LONG-TERM ASSETS
Deferred Rent Asset 596,945 - - 596,945
Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net 746,187 1,393,846 - 2,140,033
Total Long-Term Assets 1,343,132 1,393,846 - 2,736,978
Total Assets 3 4680023 § 3911288 $ (205,500) $ 8,385,811
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 693601 $ 439,996 $ - $ 1,133,597
Intercompany Payable - 205,500 (205,500) -
Capital Lease, Current Portion 66,231 46,494 - 112,725
Revolving Loan Payable, Current Portion 4,579,060 3,945,622 - 8,524,682
Total Current Liabilities 5,338,892 4,637,612 (205,500) 9,771,004
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Revolving Loan Payable 35,008 121,064 - 156,162
Total Long-Term Liabilities 35,098 121,064 - 156,162
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (795,561) (847,388) - (1,642,949)
Temporarily Restricted 101,594 - - 101,594
Total Net Assets (693,967) (847,388) - (1,541,355)
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 4680023 § 3911288 § (205,500) $ 8,385,811

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

UNRESTRICTED REVENUES

State Revenue:

State Aid

Other State Revenue
Federal Revenue:

Grants and Entitlements
Local Revenue:

In-Lieu Property Tax Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENSES
Program Services

Management and General
Total Expenses

CHANGE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Net Unrestricted Assets - Beginning of Year

NET UNRESTRICTED ASSETS - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements.

Encore Jr. Sr.
High School for
the Performing

Encore High
School for the

and Visual Arts Arts - Riverside Total

$ 8,215,967 $ 5,256,501 $ 13,472,468
1,987,085 1,425,611 3,412,696
635,276 201,914 837,190
338,016 1,354,567 1,692,583
165,843 40,089 205,932
11,342,187 8,278,682 19,620,869
8,752,776 7,257,218 16,009,994
3,341,915 1,821,269 5,163,184
12,094,691 9,078,487 21,173,178
(752,504) (799,805) (1,552,309)

58,637 (47,583) 10,954
$ (693,967) 3 (847,388) $  (1,541,355)




ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Encore Jr. Sr.
High School for
the Performing
and Visual Arts

Encore High
School for the
Arts - Riverside Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets $ (752,504)
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

$ (799,805) $ (1,552,309)

Depreciation 153,032 112,454 265,486
Change in Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable - Federal and State 429,030 737,855 1,166,885
Intracompany Receivable 2,494 500 - 2,494,500
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 1,672 117,160 118,732
Deferred Rent Asset (596,945) - (596,945)
Change in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (69,154) (76,154) (145,308)
Intercompany Payable - (2,494,500) (2,494,500)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 1,659,531 (2,402,990) (743,459)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property, Plant, and Equipment (137,525) (176,893) (314,418)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (137,525) (176,893) (314,418)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments on Capital Lease (74,949) (49,966) (124,915)
Proceeds from Notes Payable 5,429,060 6,408,126 11,837,186
Repayments of Notes Payable (4,850,000) (2,562,500) (7,412,500)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 504,111 3,795,660 4,299,771
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,026,117 1,215,777 3,241,894
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 262,804 347,079 609,883
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 2,288,921 $ 1,562,856 $ 3,851,777

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid for Interest $ 138,065

$ 112,454 $ 250,519

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Program Management Total
Services and General Expenses

Salaries and Wages $ 8,366,741 $ 1,772,516 $ 10,139,257
Pension Expense 1,725,825 378,626 2,104,451
Other Employee Benefits 717,445 128,990 846,435
Payroll Taxes 313,433 162,024 475,457
Management Fees - 141,864 141,864
Legal Expenses - 1,076,892 1,076,892
Accounting Expenses - 337,867 337,867
Instructional Materials 452 280 - 452,280
Other Fees for Services 1,600,657 338,621 1,939,278
Advertising and Promotion Expenses - 18,359 18,359
Office Expenses - 62,751 62,751
Occupancy Expenses 2,411,993 - 2,411,993
Travel Expenses - 114,752 114,752
Interest Expense - 250,519 250,519
Depreciation Expense 248,209 - 248,209
Insurance Expense - 354,833 354,833
Other Expenses 173,411 24,570 197,981

Total $ 16,009,994 $ 5163,184 $ 21173.178

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
(6)



NOTE 1

ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

Encore Education Corporation (the Organization) is a California nonprofit public benefit
corporation and is organized to manage and operate a public charter school. For the year
ended June 30, 2018, the Organization operated two public charter schools: Encore Jr./Sr.
High School for the Performing and Visual Arts and Encore High School for the Arts —
Riverside (the Schools). The mission of the Schools is to provide a creative, challenging,
and nurturing environment that offers students innovative preparation for a university
education and pursuit of the arts.

On October 22, 2007, the Hesperia Unified School District (HUSD) (Sponsor) approved the
petition of a charter for the establishment and operation of Encore Jr./Sr. High School for the
Performing and Visual Arts (Hesperia). Hesperia’s current charter granted is for the term of
five years beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2021. Hesperia is a site-based,
traditional calendar charter school, serving students in seventh through twelfth grades.

On December 8, 2014, the Riverside Unified School District (RUSD) (Sponsor) approved the
petition of a charter for the establishment and operation of Encore High School for the Arts —
Riverside (Riverside). Riverside’s current charter granted is for the term of five years
beginning July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020. Riverside is a site-based, traditional calendar
charter school, serving students in seventh through tenth grades. Riverside will expand its

program to eventually serve students in seventh through twelfth grades over the next two
years.

The Schools are charter schools organized and existing under the laws of the state of
California. The Schools receive most of their funding from both state sources and local taxes
through the state of California general-purpose entitlement funding system. Charters may be
revoked by the sponsoring district for material violations of the charter, failure to meet

student goals identified in the charter, failure to meet generally accepted standards of fiscal
management, or violation of any provision of the law.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization defines its cash and cash equivalents to include only cash on hand,
demand deposits, and liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual method of accounting and
accordingly reflect all significant receivables and liabilities.

(7)



NOTE 1

ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Costs of providing the Organization’s programs and other activities have been presented in
the statement of functional expenses. During the year, such costs are accumulated into
separate groupings as either direct or indirect. Indirect or shared costs are allocated among

program and support services by a method that best measures the relative degree of
benefit.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States as prescribed by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board.

Net Asset Classes

The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and
permanently restricted. Net assets of the Organization are defined as:

Unrestricted

All resources over which the governing board has discretionary control to use in carrying
on the general operations of the Organization.

Temporarily Restricted

These net assets are restricted by donors to be used for specific purposes. The
Organization currently has $60,936 of unspent Clean Energy and Educator
Effectiveness funds of temporarily restricted net assets.

Permanently Restricted

These net assets are permanently restricted by donors and cannot be used by the

Organization. The Organization does not currently have any permanently restricted net
assets.

Receivables

Accounts receivable primarily represent amounts due from federal and state governments
as of June 30, 2018. Management believes that all receivables are fully collectible;
therefore, no provisions for uncollectible accounts were recorded.

(8



NOTE 1

ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased. Donated fixed assets are
recorded at fair value on the date of donation. Purchases and donations greater than $5,000
are capitalized. Contributions of donated property and equipment are reported as increases
to unrestricted net assets unless the donor has stipulated that the donation has a specific
purpose. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred,
whereas renewals and betterments that extend the lives of property are capitalized.
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The Schools are both in the progress of renovating facilities used for instructional
purposes. Amounts paid to contractors and costs associated with the renovation have been
recorded as construction in progress in the accompanying statement of financial position.

Property Taxes

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are
levied on September 1 and are payable in two installments on or before November 1 and
February 1. Unsecured property taxes are not a lien against real property and are payable in
one installment on or before August 31. The County bills and collects property taxes for all
taxing agencies within the County and distributes these collections to the various agencies.
The sponsor agency of the Organization is required by law to provide in-lieu property tax
payments on a monthly basis, from August through July. The amount paid per month is
based upon an allocation per student, with a specific percentage to be paid each month.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from the California Department of Education are recognized as revenue
by the Organization based on the average daily attendance (ADA) of students. Revenue that
is restricted is recorded as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in
the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other restricted revenues are
reported as increases in temporarily restricted net assets.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted to specific use or future periods
are reported as temporarily restricted. Restricted contributions that are received and
released in the same period are reported as unrestricted revenue. Unconditional promises to
give expected to be received in one year or less are recorded at net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give expected to be received in more than one year are recorded
at fair market value at the date of the promise. Conditional promises to give are not

recognized until they become unconditional, that is, when the conditions on which they
depend are substantially met.

)



NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income Taxes

The Academy is a nonprofit entity exempt from the payment of income taxes under Internal
Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and California Revenue and Taxation Code Section
23701d. Accordingly, no provision has been made for income taxes. Management has
determined that all income tax positions are more likely than not of being sustained upon
potential audit or examination; therefore, no disclosures of uncertain income tax positions
are required. The Organization files informational returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and
the state of California. The statute of limitations for federal and California state purposes is
generally three and four years, respectively.

Subseguent Events
The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through December 15, 2018, the date
these financial statements were available to be issued.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains cash balances held in banks which are insured up to $250,000
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At times, cash in this account
exceeds the maximum insured amount. The Organization has not experienced any losses
regarding this account and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash
and cash equivalents.

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment in the accompanying financial statements are presented net
of accumulated depreciation. The Organization capitalizes all expenditures for land,
buildings, and equipment in excess of $5,000. Depreciation expense for the year ended
June 30, 2018 was 248,209.

The components of property, plant, and equipment as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Construction in Progress $ 119,778
Building 1,206,991
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 1,824,850
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (1,011,586)

Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net $ 2,140,033

(10)



NOTE 4

NOTE 5

ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

LONG-TERM DEBT

Charter School Revolving Loan

Charter School Revolving Loan Fund Program approved by the California School Finance
Authority in the amount of $250,000. The note is dated August 12, 2015, with principal
payment offsets occurring six times annually for five years with final payment in March 2021,
and bears an interest rate of .035%.

The schedule of repayment is as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2019 3 106,158
2020 50,000
Total $ 156,158

RELATED PARTIES

The chief operating officer is the husband of the chief executive officer. Both have extensive
backgrounds in business operations and management, and the chief operating officer is a
veteran certificated teacher. There are other related parties that are employed by the
School. However, pursuant to Encore Education policy, no such relationship exists between
any employee of the school and a member of the board. Moreover, the board and unrelated

employee supervisors oversee all such related employees, and all decisions related to their
employment and compensation.

Bonds Payable —-Western Encore Properties

On November 1, 2016, Western Encore Properties Incorporated, a California nonprofit
public benefit corporation (the Borrower), borrowed a total of $1 7,440,000 by issuing Charter

School Revenue Bonds (the 2016 Revenue Bonds) through the California School Finance
Authority.

The Borrower established 16955 Lemon Street, LLC (the LLC), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Borrower, to act as the holder of the Organization’s main school campus located at
16955 Lemon Street in Hesperia, California (the Encore Facility). The LLC has no other
activities. The LLC is expected to have no assets, other than holding title to the Encore
Facility, and is expected to have no revenue other than payments received pursuant to the
Lease Agreement described below.

(11)



NOTE 5

NOTE 6

ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

At issuance, the entire proceeds of the 2016 Revenue Bonds were loaned to the LLC to
i) finance certain costs of the acquisition, construction, improvement, equipping, and
furnishing of the Encore Facility at 16955 Lemon Street, i) fund a debt service reserve
account, and iii) pay the costs of issuance for the 2016 Revenue Bonds.

Under the terms of the 2016 Revenue Bonds, the LLC then leased the campus to the
Corporation pursuant to a Lease Agreement, dated November 1, 2016. The payments under
this Lease Agreement match the principal and interest payments on the 2016 Revenue
Bonds, and are automatically intercepted by the California School Finance Authority on a
quarterly basis and transferred to US Bank Trust Company, the trustee for the 2016
Revenue Bonds. The trustee then applies all such payments semiannually to make the
principal and interest payments to holders of the 2016 Revenue Bonds.

The Corporation has pledged all assets and revenues of its Hesperia campus towards
payment of these lease payments. The Corporation’s Riverside campus is not a member of
the "obligated group" of these 2016 Revenue Bonds, which were used solely by the
Hesperia campus and are paid from the Hesperia campus’ revenues each year.

Future maturities of the bonds are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Amount
2019 $ 455,000
2020 500,000
2021 355,000
2022 215,000
2023 225,000
Thereafter 14,865,000
Total $ 16,615,000

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT

Multi-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Qualified employees are covered under multi-employer defined benefit pension plans
maintained by agencies of the state of California.

The risks of participating in these multi-employer defined benefit pension plans are different
from single-employer plans because: (a) assets contributed to the multi-employer plan by
one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating
employers, (b) the required member, employer, and state contribution rates are set by the
California Legislature, and (c) if the Organization chooses to stop participating in the multi-
employer plan, it may be required to pay a withdrawal liability to the plan. The Organization
has no plans to withdraw from this multi-employer plan.

(12)



ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE6 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED)

State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS)

Plan Description

The Organization contributes to the State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS), a cost-
sharing multi-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan
administered by STRS. Plan information for STRS is not publicly available. The plan
provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are
established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers’
Retirement Law. According to the most recently available Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report and Actuarial Valuation Report for the year ended June 30, 2017, total STRS plan
net assets are $210 billion, the total actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits is
$362 billion, contributions from all employers totaled $4.2 billion, and the plan is 62.6%
funded. The Organization did not contribute more than 5% of the total contributions to the
plan.

Copies of the STRS annual financial reports may be obtained from STRS, 7667 Folsom
Boulevard, Sacramento, CA 95826 and www.calstrs.com.

Funding Policy

Active plan members hired before January 1, 2013 are required to contribute 10.25% of their
salary and those hired after are required to contribute 9.205% of their salary. The
Organization is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the STRS Teachers'
Retirement Board. Under the 2014 funding plan, employer contributions on compensation
creditable to the program will increase every year for the next seven years, up to 19.10% in
2020-21. The required employer contribution rate for year ended June 30, 2018 was
14.43% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are
established and may be amended by state statute.

The Organization’s contributions to STRS for the past three years are as follows:

Required Percent
Year Ending June 30, Contribution Contributed
2016 3 276,122 100 %
2017 $ 527,029 100 %
2018 $ 685,076 100 %

(13)



ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE6 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED)

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)
Plan Description

The Organization contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multi-employer public employee
retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. Plan information
for PERS is not publicly available. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits,
annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the
Public Employees’ Retirement Law. According to the most recently available Actuarial
Valuation Report for the year ended June 30, 2017, the School Employer Pool total plan
assets are $61 billion, the total pension liability is $84.9 billion, contributions from all
employers totaled $1.8 billion, and the plan is 72.1% funded. The Organization did not
contribute more than 5% of the total contributions to the plan.

Copies of the CalPERS’ annual financial reports may be obtained from the CalPERS
Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 and www.calpers.ca.gov.

Funding Policy

Active plan members brought into PERS membership prior to January 1, 2013 are required
to contribute 7.0% of their salary while new members after January 1, 2013 are required to
contribute 6.0% of their salary. The Organization is required to contribute an actuarially
determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are
those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution
rate for year ended June 30, 2018 was 15.531%. The contribution requirements of the plan
members are established and may be amended by state statute.

The Organization's contributions to PERS for each of the last three years are as follows:

Required Percent

Year Ending June 30, Contribution Contributed
2016 $ 320,136 100 %
2017 3 701,109 100 %

2018 $ 769,089 100 %

(14)



NOTE 7

NOTE 8

NOTE 9

ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

OPERATING LEASES

The Organization occupies office and classroom space for its operations and educational
programs under separate operating leases. Total expense for rental of space under
operating leases was $1,504,625 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Future minimum annual lease payments remaining under the lease terms outstanding are
as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2019 $ 2,452,999
2020 2,442 572
2021 1,569,989
2022 1,027,557
2023 987,670
Thereafter 29,571,616
Total $ 38,052,403

MANAGEMENT’S PLANS

The Organization’s negative ending balance and low cash reserves require that budget cuts
be made to ensure budget solvency and return to positive fund balances by fiscal year-end
and restoration of minimum reserve levels by the following year.

In response to this need, the Organization’s staff and management have worked
collaboratively to make a series of budget cuts, the most important being an across-the-
board 4% pay cut. Specifically, the intended surplus should bring the Organization from a

negative ending balance of $1,541,355 to a positive ending balance at the end of the 18-19
fiscal year.

CONTINGENCIES

The Organization has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject
to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate

disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement
would not be material.

(15)
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ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Encore Education Corporation (the Organization) was established in 2007 and is a nonprofit public
benefit corporation organized to manage and operate public charter schools. For the year ended
June 30, 2018, the Organization operated two public charter schools: Encore Jr./Sr. High School for the
Performing & Visual Arts and Encore High School for the Arts — Riverside.

Encore Jr./Sr. High School for the Performing & Visual Arts began serving students in August 2008.
The charter has been renewed for a term of five years beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2021

and is sponsored by the Hesperia Unified School District. The charter number authorized by the state of
California is 971.

Encore High School for the Arts — Riverside began serving students in August 2015. The charter was
granted on December 8, 2014 by the Riverside Unified School District for a term of five years beginning
July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020. The charter number authorized by the state of California is 1747.

The board of directors and the administrators as of the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Member Office 2-Year Term Expires
Lenny Esposito President September 30, 2019
Suzanne Cherry Vice President September 30, 2019
Kelly Ahmed Member September 30, 2019
Kathy Nielsen Member September 30, 2019
Rob Gabler Member September 30, 2019

ADMINISTRATORS

Denise Griffin Chief Executive Officer
John Griffin Chief Operations Officer
Steve Dekany Executive Officer of Enroliment/Marketing

(17)



ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Encore Jr. Sr. High School for the Performing and Visual Arts

Traditional
Instructional Minutes Instructional
Requirement Actual Days Status

Grade 7 50,400 71,252 179 In compliance
Grade 8 54,000 71,252 179 In compliance
Grade 9 54,000 71,252 179 In compliance
Grade 10 54,000 71,252 179 In compliance
Grade 11 54,000 71,252 179 In compliance
Grade 12 54,000 71,252 179 In compliance

Encore High School for the Arts — Riverside

Traditional
Instructional Minutes Instructional
Requirement Actual Days Status

Grade 7 50,400 71,252 179 In compliance
Grade 8 54,000 71,252 179 In compliance
Grade 9 54,000 71,252 179 In compliance
Grade 10 54,000 71,252 179 In compliance
Grade 11 54,000 71,252 179 In compliance
Grade 12 54,000 71,252 179 In compliance

See accompanying Auditors’ Report and Notes fo Supplementary Information
(18)



ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Encore Jr. Sr. High School for the Performing and Visual Arts

Second Period Report Annual Report
Classroom Classroom
Based Total Based Total
Grades 7-8 354.16 354.16 351.47 351.47
Grades 9-12 602.64 602.76 594.20 594,53
ADA Totals 956.80 956.92 945.67 946.00

Encore High School for the Arts — Riverside

Second Period Report Annual Report
Classroom Classroom
Based Total Based Total
Grades 7-8 343.34 428.21 341.14 341.14
Grades 9-12 343.34 428.21 420.97 420.97
ADA Totals 686.68 856.42 762.11 762.11

See accompanying Audifors’ Report and Notes to Supplementary Information
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ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 Annual Financial Report
Fund Balances (Net Assets)

Adjustments and Reclassifications:
Increase (Decrease) of Fund Balance (Net Assets):
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable - Federal and State
Interfund Accounts Receivable
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Interfund Accounts Payable
Notes Payable
Net Adjustments and Reclassifications

June 30, 2018 Audited Financial Statement
Fund Balances (Net Assets)

See accompanying Auditors’ Report and Notes fo Supplementary Information
(20)

Encore Jr. Sr.
High School for
the Performing
and Visual Arts

Encore High
School for the
Arts - Riverside

$ (674,407) $  (799,463)
847,014 517,945
(1,202,514) (517,945)
205,500 }

: 495,000

: (205,500)

130,440 (337,425)
(19,560) (47,925)

$ (693.967) _$ (847,388)




ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Encore Jr. Sr. High

Federal Pass-Through School for the Encore High Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Entity Identifying Performing and School for the Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Visual Arts Arts - Riverside Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education
Pass-Through Program from California Department of Education:
Every Student Succeeds Act
Title I, Part A, Basic Grants - Low-Income and Neglected 84.010 14329 $ 248,437 $ - 248,437
Title Il, Part A, Teacher Quality 84.367 14341 24,788 - 24,788
Charter School Cluster:
Public Charter Schools Grant Program 84.282A 14941 - 92,929 92,929
Special Education Cluster:
Special Ed: IDEA 84.027 13379 110,265 108,985 219,250
Total U. S. Department of Education 383,490 201,914 585,404
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Pass-Through Program from California Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Programs 10.555 N/A 251,786 - 251,786
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 251,786 - 251,786
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 635,276 $ 201,914 837,190

N/A - Pass-through entity number not readily available or not applicable.

See accompanying Auditors’ Report and Notes to Supplementary Information

(21)




ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTE 5

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the

Organization and whether the Organization complied with the provisions of California
Education Code.

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the
Organization. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide
the basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to charter schools. This
schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels.

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the net assets of the charter
schools as reported on the Annual Financial Report form to the audited financial statements.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of the Corporation under programs of the federal government for the
year ended June 30, 2017. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the Corporation, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Encore Education Corporation.

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform

Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement.

INDIRECT COSTS

Encore Education Corporation has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost
rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance, but has used the California Department of
Education approved indirect cost rate of 5.11%.

(22)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Encore Education Corporation
Hesperia, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Encore Education
Corporation (the Organization), a nonprofit California public benefit corporation, which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, the related notes to the financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated December 15, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal

control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a
combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is

less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

@ Ne)(|a (23)
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Board of Directors
Encore Education Corporation

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

WM"’% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Glendora, California
December 15, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM, AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Encore Education Corporation
Hesperia, California

We have audited the compliance of Encore Education Corporation (the Organization) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2018. The Organization’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and terms and conditions
of federal awards applicable to its federal program.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Organization’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the Organization’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.

O Nexia @
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Board of Directors
Encore Education Corporation

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on compliance, for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance such that
there is a reasonable possibility, that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal program will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less

severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

é%%czmmm L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Glendora, California
December 15, 2018

(26)



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

CliftonLarsonAllen

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Board of Directors
Encore Education Corporation
Hesperia, California

We have audited Encore Education Corporation’s (the Organization) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 2017-2018 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel for the
year ended June 30, 2018. The Organization’s state compliance requirements are identified in the table
below.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for the compliance with the state laws and regulations as identified below.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to below. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, and the 20717-2018 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the specific areas listed below has occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the Organization’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion on state compliance. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the Organization’s compliance.

Compliance Requirements Tested

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to

determine the Organization's compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to the following
items:

Procedures
Description Performed
School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools:
Educator Effectiveness Yes
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes
Before and After School Education and Safety Program Not applicable
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
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Board of Directors
Encore Education Corporation

Description
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts

Local Control and Accountability Plan

Independent Study-Course Based

Charter Schools:
Attendance
Mode of Instruction
Nonclassroom-based instructional/independent study
Determination of funding for nonclassroom-based instruction
Annual instructional minutes — classroom based
Charter School Facility Grant Program

Procedures
Performed
Yes

Yes

Not applicable

Yes
Yes
No'
Not applicable
Yes
Not applicable

' Nonclassroom ADA was under the threshold that required testing.

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, the Organization complied with the laws and regulations of the state programs referred

to above in all material respects for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on state compliance is solely to describe the results of testing based on the
requirements of the 2017-2018 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. Accordingly, this report is not

suitable for any other purpose.
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Glendora, California
December 15, 2018
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ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section | — Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified
2. Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? yes
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes

3. Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes

Federal Awards
1. Internal control over major federal programs:

* Material weakness(es) identified? yes
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with

no

none reported

no

no

none reported

2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes no
Identification of Major Federal Programs
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.027 Special Ed: IDEA
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $__ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
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ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

All audit findings must be identified as one or more of the following categories:

Five Digit Code Finding Types
10000 Attendance
20000 Inventory of Equipment
30000 Internal Control
40000 State Compliance
42000 Charter School Facilities Program
50000 Federal Compliance
60000 Miscellaneous
61000 Classroom Teacher Salaries
62000 Local Control Accountability Plan
70000 Instructional Materials
71000 Teacher Misassignments
72000 School Accountability Report Card

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Section lll — Federal Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

State Compliance Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with the 20717-2018 Guide
for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting.
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ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION
STATTUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

There were no findings in the prior year.
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Encore Education Corporation
Phone: (760) 949-2036
Fax: (760) 956-3338

www.encorehighschool.com Board Members:
Lenny Esposito, Board President
Sites: Suzanne Cherry, Board Vice President
Hesperia Kelly Ahmed, Board Secretary/Treasurer

MEETING AT: 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia, CA 92345

— CLASSROOM F 29 Rob Gabler, Board Member

Paula Gharib, Board Member

Riverside

MEETING AT: 3460 Orange Street, Riverside, CA 92501 Mari Miller, Board Alternate*

— CLASSROOM H1 Kathy Nielson, Board Alternate*
/INFO: \

Desert Mountain Special Education Local Plan Area (DM SELPA) Agreement —

Riverside and Hesperia -
Charter SELPA membership also ensures compliance with the LEA member’s obligations under

Education Code § 56195, et seq. It is the goal of the Desert/Mountain SELPA that all Students
with exceptional needs within the Charter SELPA receive appropriate special education
programes. It is the intent of the Charter SELPA that special education programs be coordinated
and operated in accordance with the governance structure.
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DESERT/MOUNTAIN CHARTER SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA
17800 Highway 18 e Apple Valley, CA 92307 o (760) 552-6700 o (760) 242-5363 FAX

AGREEMENT FOR PARTICIPATION

The Desert/Mountain Charter Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) as authorized by the California State
Board of Education assists California charter schools that have successfully completed the SELPA membership
process and have signed this Agreement for Participation (Agreement) which are deemed Local Education
Agencies pursuant to Education Code § 47641, in meeting their obligations to provide special education and
related services (each term as defined in Title 20 of the United States Code § 1401 and the applicable rules,
regulations, and interpretive guidance issued thereunder and collectively referred to as Services) to applying or
enrolled students actually or potentially entitled to Services under applicable state and federal laws and

It is the goal of the Desert/Mountain Charter SELPA that all Students with exceptional needs within the Charter
SELPA receive appropriate special education programs. It is the intent of the Charter SELPA that special
education programs be coordinated and operated in accordance with the governance structure.

The respective Charter Schools who are signatories hereto, the Office of the San Bemardino County
Superintendent of Schools (SBCSS), and the Desert/Mountain Charter SELPA, mutually agree as follows:

DEFINITIONS

LEA: As described in Education Code § 56026.3, a Local Education Agency is a school district, a county
office of education, a nonprofit charter school participating as a member of a special education local plan
area, or a special education local plan area.

RLA: As described in Education Code § 56030, a Responsible Local Agency is a school district or county
office of education designated in the Local Plan as the administrative entity the duties of which shall include,

but are not limited to, receiving and distributing regionalized services funds, providing administrative support,
and coordinating the implementation of the Loca] Plan.

Federal regulations use the term “Administrative Unit” or “AU.” For purposes of this agreement, the Office of
the San Bemardino County Superintendent of Schools (SBCSS) shall be the RLA or AU for the Charter
SELPA, subject to change at the discretion of the California Association of Health and Education Linked
Professions Joint Powers Authority (CAHELP JPA) Governance Council.

CAHELP JPA Governance Counecil; This group is comprised of the Superintendent/Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) representing each of the LEA members of the Desert/Mountain SELPA, and two (2) CEO
representatives from the Charter SELPA. A CEO representing multiple LEAs shall count as a single member
of the Governance Council. Each member of the Governance Council shall have one vote. Each member of
the Governance Council may designate in writing an alternate representative, including but not limited to,
another member of the Governance Council (“proxy”), if the Superintendent/CEO or CEQ is unable to attend
a meeting, which designated alternate representative or designee shall have the full authority of the
designating Superintendent/CEQ or CEO for the purpose of decision-making. Such designation must be
received by the CEO prior to the commencement of a scheduled meeting of the Governance Council, and
shall be good only for that meeting. One-third of the members, represented in person or by proxy, shall
constitute a quorum at a meeting of members.

Efforts will be made to ensure the committee has representation in a variety of areas, e.g., various

geographical areas of the Charter SELPA, single charter, large charter, small charter, original founding
members, or new members.

APPENDIX C: Chapter 11 — Admission of LEAs to the Charter SELPA (rev. 07/18) Page 1 of 8
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DESERT/MOUNTAIN CHARTER SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA
17800 Highway 18 e Apple Valley, CA 92307 (760) 552-6700 o (760) 242-5363 FAX

represents. The Charter Executive Council makes recommendations to the CAHELP JPA Governance
Council on fiscal and policy matters.

board. The CAC will advise the Charter SELPA charter schools (“Local Plan”) as well as provide local parent

training options in accordance with the duties, responsibilities, and requirements of Education Code §§
56190-56194,

Because of the geographic diversity within the Charter SELPA, meetings may be conducted using available
technology.

Individualized Education Program (IEP): A plan that describes the child’s current abilities, sets annual
goals, and describes the education services needed to implement their goals in accordance with Education
Code § 56032. Charter LEAs will use the [EP documents in Web IEP for this plan.

IEP Team: A group of team members as defined in Education Code § 56341, who meet for the purpose of
determining eligibility for special education and developing, reviewing, or revising a child’s IEP and
recommendations for special education services.

LEA MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Each Charter LEA member agrees that it is subject to the following nondelegable responsibilities and duties
under this Agreement, all adopted Charter SELPA policies and procedures, the Local Plan, and governing
federal and state laws and regulations (collectively, LEA Member Obligations), compliance with which is a
condition precedent to membership, and continuing membership, in the Charter SELPA. The Charter LEA
member as a participant in the Local Plan shall perform the following and be exclusively responsible for all
costs, charges, claims, and demands arising out of, or related to, its own students and its respective programs
operated by the Charter LEA member:

1. Adhere to the Local Plan and policies and procedures as adopted by the CAHELP JPA Governance
Council; ‘

APPENDIX C: Chapter 11 - Admission of LEAs to the Charter SELPA (rev. 07/18) Page 2 of 8




10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

DESERT/MOUNTAIN CHARTER SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA
17800 Highway 18 e Apple Valley, CA 92307 o (760) 552-6700 o (760) 242-5363 FAX

Select, compensate, and determine the duties of special education teachers, paracducators, and other
personnel as required to conduct the program specified in the Local Plan, and in compliance with
state and federal mandates; charter schools may contract for those services;

Conduct and/or contract those programs operated by the Charter LEA member in conformance with
the Local Plan and the state and federal mandates;

Organize and administer the activities of [EP teams, including the selection of Charter LEA member
staff and who will serve as members of the IEP team in conformance with the Education Code )
56341 and in compliance with the Local Plan;

Organize and maintain the activities of the Resource Specialist Program in conformance with
Education Code § 56362; Designated Instruction and Services in conformance with Education Code §
56363; and Special Classes and Centers in conformance with Education Code §§ 56364.1 and
56364.2; and in compliance with the Local Plan;

Provide facilities as required to house the programs conducted by the Charter LEA member;

Provide for the acquisition and distribution of supplies and equipment for the programs conducted by
the Charter LEA member;

Provide and/or arrange for such transportation services as may be required to provide special
education programs specified that are conducted by the Charter LEA member;

Cooperate in the development of curricula for classes and the development of program objectives
with the AU. Cooperate in the evaluation of programs as specified in the Local Plan, with the AU;

Cooperate in the development of the procedures and methods for communicating with parents and/or
legal guardians of individuals served in conformance with the provisions of the Local Plan, with the
AU;

Provide for the documentation and reporting of assessment procedures used for the placement of
individuals and the security thereof. Provide for the continuous review of placements and assessment
procedures employed to insure their effectiveness and applicability, and insure the continued
implementation and compliance with eligibility criteria;

Provide for the integration of individuals educated under this Agreement into the general education
school programs and provide for evaluating the results of such integration according to specifications
of the Local Plan;

Conduct the review of individual placements requested by parents and/or legal guardians of the
individual in accordance with the Local Plan;

Prepare and submit all required reports, including reports on student enrollment, program
expenditures, and program evaluation;

Designate a person to represent the Charter LEA member on the Charter Special Education Steering
Committee to monitor the implementation of the Local Plan and make necessary recommendations
for changes and/or modifications;

Designate a representative for the Charter LEA member to serve on the Charter Special Education

Community Advisory Committee, in accordance with Education Code §§ 56192-56193 and pursuant
to the procedures established in the Local Plan

Designate a representative for the Charter LEA member to serve on the Charter Finance Committee,
who is knowledgeable in the area of special education finance;

APPENDIX C: Chapter 11 — Admission of LEAs to the Charter SELPA (rev. 07/18) Page 3 of 8




DESERT/MOUNTAIN CHARTER SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA
17800 Highway 18 e Apple Valley, CA 92307 o (760) 552-6700 o (760) 242-5363 FAX

18. Designate the Charter LEA Superintendent/CEQ or designee to represent the Charter LEA member

on the CAHELP JPA Governance Council to supervise and direct the implementation of the Local
Plan;

19. Receive special education funding from Charter SELPA in accordance with the allocation and budget
plan;

20. It is understood that except as otherwise specifically agreed upon, from time to time, the RLA shall
have no responsibility for the operation of any direct education program or service of any kind;

21. Provide the RLA with the Charter LEA member’s annual audit report, as conducted according to
Education Code § 47605(b)(5)(1). Annual submission shall be made no later than January 31+
Charter LEA member further agrees to forward to the RLA copies of State Controller’s Office
communications regarding audit report corrective actions and a corrected audit report, if applicable.
Should a Charter LEA member be the subject of a Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistant Team
(FCMAT) report or other agency review that indicates concerns with the inappropriate use of funds,
financial solvency concerns, or programmatic or operational concerns, the Charter LEA member shall
provide written notification to the RLA and the Charter SELPA Administrator;

22. A Charter LEA member contracting for external services, consistent with definitions included herein,
shall do so only with a duly licensed and authorized entity or individual. The contract for services
executed by the Charter LEA member and the external consultant or contractor shall include a clause
stating the contracting or consultant agrees to defend and indemnify the Charter LEA member,
Charter SELPA, RLA, and other indemnified parties in response to any claim arising from the
contractor’s or consultant’s actual or alleged failure to provide services in conformity with contract
obligations. To access special education funding, the Charter LEA member must contract with CDE-
certified nonpublic agencies/schools (NPA/S).

With respect to external services and/or student placements, the Charter LEA member shall
affirmatively monitor, assess, and to the extent necessary, intervene or manage such external

placements or services in conformity to ensure that the Charter LEA member’s obligations to the
student are still being met.

AU/RLA DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Pursuant to the provisions of Education Code § 56030 et seq., the RLA/AU, LEA, or county office of
education designated in the Local Plan as the administrative entity the duties of which shall include, but are

1. Act as agent for charters participating in the Local Plan as specified in the Local Plan. Receive,
compile, and submit required enrollment reports and compute all special education apportionments as
authorized under Education Code § 56836 et seq. Receive data from each Charter LEA member to
compile and submit budgets for programs and monitor the fiscal aspects of the programs conducted.
Receive the special education apportionments of Regionalized Services as authorized under
Education Code § 56836.02;

2. Coordinate with Charter LEA members in the development and implementation of a systematic
method for referring and placing children with disabilities who reside in the Charter SELPA,
including the methods and procedures for communication with parents and/or legal guardians of
children with disabilities according to the procedures in the Local Plan;
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3. Assist Charter LEA members in assessing data and reviewing interventions prior to a referral to
assess for special education. Review implementation of standards-based curriculum and provide for
continuous evaluation of special education programs in accordance with the Local Plan;

4. Coordinate the organization and maintenance of the Charter Special Education Community Advisory
Committee as part of the responsibility of the AU to coordinate the implementation of the Local Plan
pursuant to Education Code § 56030. Provide for the attendance of designated members of the AU’s
staff at all regularly scheduled Charter Special Education Community Advisory Committee meetings;

3. Coordinate community resources with those provided by the Charter LEA members and the AU,
including providing such contractual agreements as may be required;

6. Organize and maintain the Charter Special Education Steering Committee to monitor the operations
of the Local Plan and make recommendations for necessary revisions, including, but not limited to:

a.  Monitoring the application eligibility criteria throughout the Local Plan area;
b. Coordinating the implementation of the transportation for special education students;

¢. Coordinating the system of data collection, management, and evaluation;

A~

Coordinating personnel development and curriculum development for special education,
including alternative dispute resolution;

e. Coordinating the identification, referral, assessment, instructional planning, and review
procedures, including communication with parents and/or legal guardians regarding rights
and responsibilities for special education:

f. Developing interagency referral and placement procedures; and
g. Evaluating the effectiveness of special education programs.

7. Support the CAHELP JPA Governance Council by attendance and participation of the County
Superintendent and/or designce at meetings;

8. Provide for regular inservice training for AU and Charter LEA member staff responsible for the

operation and conduct of the Local Plan. Regular inservice training may also be provided to CAC
representatives;

9. Provide the method and forms to enable Charter LEA members to report to the AU on student
enrollment and program expenditures. Establish and maintain a student information system;

10. Provide reasonable assistance to the Charter LEA member upon request from the Charter LEA
member administration, or individual cases, including, but not limited to:

a. Complaint issues;
b.  Hearing issues; and
¢. Identification of appropriate programs for specific students.

11. Perform other services reasonable and necessary to the administration and coordination of the Local
Plan;

12. Receive special education funding and distribute funds in accordance with the Charter SELPA fiscal
allocation and budget plan; and

13. Schedule a public hearing for purposes of adopting the Annual Service Plan and Annual Budget Plan.
Notwithstanding the participation in SELPA dispute resolution procedures, the county office of education has

the responsibility to coordinate all local plans to ensure that all individuals residing within the county,
including those enrolled in programs including, but not limited to charter schools, have appropriate access to
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special education programs and related services. In instances where a charter school serves children residing
in a county that is different from the county of the LEA that authorizes the charter, the county office of
education where the LEA that authorized the charter is located, is responsible for ensuring that those charter
school children have appropriate access to special education programs and related services.

PROVISIONS OF THE AGREEMENT

1.

Consistent with this Agreement, each Charter LEA member shall full and exclusive authority and
responsibility for classifying employment positions within their respective Charter LEA member;

No Charter LEA member may enter into any agreement, Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), or
other undertaking that would bind or limit independent decision-making on the same or similar
matters by any other Charter LEA member;

The managerial prerogatives of any participating Charter LEA member shall not be infringed upon by
any other participating Charter LEA member except upon mutual consent of an affected Charter LEA
member(s), or unless as otherwise set forth by this Agreement;

Any Charter LEA member may terminate its Charter SELPA membership at the end of the fiscal year
next occurring after having provided 12 months’ prior written notice as follows:

a.  Prior initial written notice of intended termination to the RLA of at least one year; and

b. Final written notice of termination to the RLA no more than six months after the Charter
LEA member’s initial notice of intended termination.

The RLA County Superintendent of Schools may terminate any Charter LEA member’s membership

at the end of the fiscal year next occurring after having provided 12 months’ prior written notice as
follows:

a. Prior initial written notice of intended termination to the Charter LEA member of at least one
year; and

b. Final written notice of termination to the Charter LEA member no more than six months after
the RLA’s initial notice of intended termination.
Funding reccived by a Charter LEA member is subject to the elements of the allocation plan. The
allocation plan is updated on an annual basis and approved by the CAHELP JPA Governance
Council. Funding is subject to administrative fees, set-aside provisions, differentiated funding in year
one and year two, and the potential recapture provisions if funds arc not spent. These details are
outlined in the allocation plan;

The Charter LEA members and the AU shall continue to manage and operate programs in their
respective Charter LEAS in accordance with Education Code § 56172;

The Charter Executive Council shall have the responsibility and right to monitor and correct any
special education matter that affects the special education local plan area. AU staff shall be
responsible for coordinating and informing the governance structure on any such matter;

The Charter LEA members and the AU will maintain responsibility for program administration for
the service they provide. All administrative requirements that govern the unit will be in effect
regarding special education services. The Superintendent, and/or Administrators of Special Education
in cach Charter LEA member and in the AU will be responsible for the daily operation of their
respective programs.
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9. The student program placement is and shall remain the responsibility of the respective Charter LEA
member. Student admission and transfer shall be determined in accordance with the Charter LEA,
Charter SELPA, and CAHELP JPA Governance Council policies and procedures established in
accordance with the identification, assessment, instructional planning, and placement set forth in the
Local Plan. Nothing contained herein shall be interpreted as providing automatic transfer rights to
parents or students. The charter enrolling any student shall have the exclusive right to approve
placement in any other agency. Each Charter LEA of service shall have the right to determine if such
Charter LEA is able to provide a free appropriate public education for the student.

10. Supervision and other incidence of employment of special education staff will be the responsibility of
the respective Charter LEA member or AU. Each Charter LEA member and the RLA shall have full
exclusive and independent control over the development, change, implementation, and application of
all evaluation procedures of their LEA member or in the RLA as the case may be. Charter LEA
members shall have the full exclusive authority to recruit, interview, and hire special education staff
as needed by such Charter LEA member to provide continuity and service to their special education
students.

11. The Charter Executive Council shall review and make allocation plan recommendations. The
allocation plan defines the distribution of state and federal funds within the Charter SELPA for the
costs of providing special education programs. The CAHELP JPA Governance Council shall approve
all changes. There is a legal requirement for a public hearing and adoption of an annual service and
budget plan. This shall be done annually by the CAHELP JPA Governance Council. This Charter
SELPA will not have any property tax allocations.

WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS

As a condition of membership, each Charter LEA member warrants and represents that at no time during such
Charter LEA member’s membership in the Charter SELPA shall any such Charter LEA member, directly or
indirectly, provide special education funding for the benefit for a for-profit entity. All funding provided
through the Charter SELPA shall be treated as a restricted funding source to be expended only for special
education or special education services. Nothing contained herein shall be interpreted as prohibiting any
Charter LEA member from expending funds for nonpublic agency or nonpublic school purposes for the
benefit of children served. There shall not be a conflict of interest between the Charter LEA member and the
Charter Management Organization (CMO).

STANDARD OF CONDUCT

Each Charter LEA member, at all times, shall conduct itself in such a manner as to act in the best interests of
all other Charter SELPA members. Charter LEA members shall not engage in any activity or enterprise which
would tend to injure or expose the Charter SELPA or any of its members to any significant risk of injury of
any kind. No Charter LEA member shall undertake to independently act on behalf of the Charter SELPA or
any of its members without express written authorization of the Charter SELPA.

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The RLA shall not be responsible for any Charter LEA member or Charter SELPA obligations or duties of
any kind or nature except as explicitly set forth in this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS
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To the fullest extent allowed by law, each Charter LEA member agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold
harmless the Charter SELPA and other Charter SELPA LEA members, the Office of the San Bernardino
County Superintendent of Schools, and each of their respective directors, officers, agency, employees, and
volunteers (the Indemnified Parties), from any claim or, demand, damages, losses or expenses (including,
without limitation, reasonable attorney fees) that arise in any manner from an actual or alleged failure by a
Charter LEA member to fulfill one or more of the Charter LEA member’s obligations except to the extent that
such suit arises from the RLA’s negligence.

Further, the Charter SELPA shall be responsible for holding harmless and indemnifying the RLA for any
costs of any kind or nature arising out of, or related to, this Agreement other than as specifically contemplated
herein, except to the extent that such cost arises from the RLA’s negligence.

FULL DISCLOSURE

Except as otherwise prohibited by law, upon request by the Charter SELPA or any of its members, a Charter
SELPA member shall provide any requested information, documents, writings, or information of any sort
requested without delay.

This agreement is entered into for the 2018-19 fiscal year and, absent a new agreement or termination,
continues each year thereafter. Executed on this__ 2 dayof (i0,2014 .

CHARTER LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY (LEA) APPROVAL

Charter LEA Name:

Encore Jr/Sr High School

Authorized Agent/Representative Name / Title:

Denise Griffin, Chief Executive Officer

Signatul'e:o %\
e //
/ Ve

Date signed:

/'6/1 L gerg

DESERT/MOUNTAIN CHARTER SELPA APPROVAL

CAHELP JPA Governance Council Authorized Agent/Representative Name /
Title:

Jenae Holtz, Chief Executive Officer

Signature:

Date signed:
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AGREEMENT FOR PARTICIPATION

It is the goal of the Desert/Mountain Charter SELPA that all Students with exceptional needs within the Charter
SELPA receive appropriate special education programs. It is the intent of the Charter SELPA that special
education programs be coordinated and operated in accordance with the governance structure.

The respective Charter Schools who are signatories hereto, the Office of the San Bernardino County
Superintendent of Schools (SBCSS), and the Desert/Mountain Charter SELPA, mutually agree as follows:

DEFINITIONS

LEA: As described in Education Code § 56026.3, a Local Education Agency is a school district, a county
office of education, a nonprofit charter school participating as a member of a special education local plan
area, or a special education local plan area.

the Governance Council may designate in writing an alternate representative, including but not limited to,
another member of the Governance Council (“proxy”), if the Superintendent/CEO or CEO is unable to attend
a meeting, which designated alternate representative or designee shall have the ful] authority of the
designating Superintendent/CEO or CEO for the purpose of decision-making. Such designation must be

Efforts will be made to ensure the committee has representation in a variety of areas, €.g., various

geographical areas of the Charter SELPA, single charter, large charter, small charter, original founding
members, or new members.
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Charter Executive Council: The Charter Executive Council is comprised of a representative from each
Charter LEA in the Charter SELPA at the CEO level. Organizations that operate more than one Charter LEA
have a single representative for all Charter LEAs. Each CEO has one vote for the Charter LEA he/she
represents. The Charter Executive Council makes recommendations to the CAHELP JPA Governance
Council on fiscal and policy matters.

Charter Special Education Steering Committee: This Steering Committee serves in an advisory capacity to
the Charter SELPA Administrator. Each Charter School is entitled to select one representative for this
committee - either a teacher or an administrator. Representatives commit to a full year of service, which
would include meeting regularly for the purpose of advising the CAHELP JPA CEO and receiving and

disseminating direct program/instructional information.

Special Education Community Advisory Committee (CAC): Each Charter LEA shall select a
representative to participate in the Special Education Community Advisory Committee to serve staggered

board. The CAC will advise the Charter SELPA charter schools (“Local Plan”) as well as provide local parent

training options in accordance with the duties, responsibilities, and requirements of Education Code §§
56190-56194.

Because of the geographic diversity within the Charter SELPA, meetings may be conducted using available
technology.

Charter Finance Committee: Each Charter LEA shall appoint an appropriate administrator of special
education programs and/or administrator who is knowledgeable in the area of special education finance to the

notice of the meeting and agenda, minutes, and additional documentation as needed to provide for informed
decision-making.

Individualized Education Program (IEP): A plan that describes the child’s current abilities, sets annual
goals, and describes the education services needed to implement their goals in accordance with Education
Code § 56032. Charter LEAs will use the IEP documents in Web IEP for this plan.

IEP Team: A group of team members as defined in Education Code § 56341, who meet for the purpose of
determining cligibility for special education and developing, reviewing, or revising a child’s IEP and
recommendations for special education services.

LEA MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Each Charter LEA member agrees that it is subject to the following nondelegable responsibilities and duties
under this Agreement, all adopted Charter SELPA policies and procedures, the Local Plan, and governing
federal and state laws and regulations (collectively, LEA Member Obligations), compliance with which is a
condition precedent to membership, and continuing membership, in the Charter SELPA. The Charter LEA
member as a participant in the Loca] Plan shall perform the following and be exclusively responsible for all
costs, charges, claims, and demands arising out of, or related to, its own students and its respective programs
operated by the Charter LEA member-

1. Adhere to the Local Plan and policies and procedures as adopted by the CAHELP JPA Governance
Council;

APPENDIX C: Chapter 11 — Admission of LEAs to the Charter SELPA (rev. 07/18) Page 2 of 8




10.

11.

12.

L3

14.

15,

16.

17.

DESERT/MOUNTAIN CHARTER SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA
17800 Highway 18 » Apple Valley, CA 92307  (760) 552-6700 » (760) 242-5363 FAX

Select, compensate, and determine the duties of special education teachers, paraeducators, and other
personnel as required to conduct the program specified in the Local Plan, and in compliance with
state and federal mandates; charter schools may contract for those services;

Conduct and/or contract those programs operated by the Charter LEA member in conformance with
the Local Plan and the state and federal mandates;

Organize and administer the activities of IEP teams, including the selection of Charter LEA member
staff and who will serve as members of the IEP team in conformance with the Education Code §
56341 and in compliance with the Local Plan;

Organize and maintain the activities of the Resource Specialist Program in conformance with
Education Code § 56362; Designated Instruction and Services in conformance with Education Code §
56363; and Special Classes and Centers in conformance with Education Code §§ 56364.1 and
56364.2; and in compliance with the Local Plan;

Provide facilities as required to house the programs conducted by the Charter LEA member;

Provide for the acquisition and distribution of supplies and equipment for the programs conducted by
the Charter LEA member;

Provide and/or arrange for such transportation services as may be required to provide special
education programs specified that are conducted by the Charter LEA member;

Cooperate in the development of curricula for classes and the development of program objectives
with the AU. Cooperate in the evaluation of programs as specified in the Local Plan, with the AU;

Cooperate in the development of the procedures and methods for communicating with parents and/or
legal guardians of individuals served in conformance with the provisions of the Local Plan, with the
AU;

Provide for the documentation and reporting of assessment procedures used for the placement of
individuals and the security thereof. Provide for the continuous review of placements and assessment
procedures employed to insure their effectiveness and applicability, and insure the continued
implementation and compliance with eligibility criteria;

Provide for the integration of individuals educated under this Agreement into the general education

school programs and provide for evaluating the results of such integration according to specifications
of the Local Plan;

Conduct the review of individual placements requested by parents and/or legal guardians of the
individual in accordance with the Local Plan;

Prepare and submit all required reports, including reports on student enrollment, program
expenditures, and program evaluation;

Designate a person to represent the Charter LEA member on the Charter Special Education Steering
Committee to monitor the implementation of the Local Plan and make necessary recommendations
for changes and/or modifications;

Designate a representative for the Charter LEA member to serve on the Charter Special Education
Community Advisory Committee, in accordance with Education Code §§ 56192-56193 and pursuant
to the procedures established in the Local Plan;

Designate a representative for the Charter LEA member to serve on the Charter Finance Committee,
who is knowledgeable in the area of special education finance;
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18. Designate the Charter LEA Superintendent/CEO or designee to represent the Charter LEA member

on the CAHELP JPA Governance Council to supervise and direct the implementation of the Local
Plan;

19. Receive special education funding from Charter SELPA in accordance with the allocation and budget
plan;

20. It is understood that except as otherwise specifically agreed upon, from time to time, the RLA shall
have no responsibility for the operation of any direct education program or service of any kind;

21. Provide the RLA with the Charter LEA member’s annual audit report, as conducted according to
Education Code § 47605(b)(5)(1). Annual submission shall be made no later than January 31+
Charter LEA member further agrees to forward to the RLA copies of State Controller’s Office

(FCMAT) report or other agency review that indicates concerns with the inappropriate use of funds,
financial solvency concerns, or programmatic or operational concerns, the Charter LEA member shall
provide written notification to the RLA and the Charter SELPA Administrator;

22. A Charter LEA member contracting for external services, consistent with definitions included herein,

s actual or alleged failure to provide services in conformity with contract
obligations. To access special education funding, the Charter LEA member must contract with CDE-

With respect to external services and/or student placements, the Charter LEA member shall
affirmatively monitor, assess, and to the extent necessary, intervene or manage such external

placements or services in conformity to ensure that the Charter LEA member’s obligations to the
student are still being met.

AU/RLA DUTIES AND RESPON SIBILITIES

Pursuant to the provisions of Education Code § 56030 et seq., the RLA/AU, LEA, or county office of
education designated in the Local Plan as the administrative entity the duties of which shall include, but are
not limited to, receiving and distributing Regionalized Services funds, providing administrative support, and
coordinating the implementation of the Local Plan. In addition, the RLA/AU shall perform such services and
functions that may include, but are not limited to the following:

1. Act as agent for charters participating in the Local Plan as specified in the Local Plan. Receive,
compile, and submit required enrollment reports and compute all special education apportionments as
authorized under Education Code § 56836 et seq. Receive data from each Charter LEA member to

children with disabilities according to the procedures in the Loca] Plan;
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3. Assist Charter LEA members in assessing data and reviewing interventions prior to a referral to
assess for special education. Review implementation of standards-based curriculum and provide for
continuous evaluation of special education programs in accordance with the Local Plan;

4. Coordinate the organization and maintenance of the Charter Special Education Community Advisory
Committee as part of the responsibility of the AU to coordinate the implementation of the Local Plan
pursuant to Education Code § 56030. Provide for the attendance of designated members of the AU’s
staff at all regularly scheduled Charter Special Education Community Advisory Committee meetings;

5. Coordinate community resources with those provided by the Charter LEA members and the AU,
including providing such contractual agreements as may be required;

6. Organize and maintain the Charter Special Education Steering Committee to monitor the operations
of the Local Plan and make recommendations for necessary revisions, including, but not limited to:

a. Monitoring the application eligibility criteria throughout the Local Plan area;
b. Coordinating the implementation of the transportation for special education students;
¢. Coordinating the system of data collection, management, and evaluation;

d. Coordinating personnel development and curriculum development for special education,
including alternative dispute resolution;

e. Coordinating the identification, referral, assessment, instructional planning, and review
procedures, including communication with parents and/or legal guardians regarding rights
and responsibilities for special education;

f. Developing interagency referral and placement procedures; and
g. Evaluating the effectiveness of special education programs.

7. Support the CAHELP JPA Governance Council by attendance and participation of the County
Superintendent and/or designee at meetings;

8. Provide for regular inservice training for AU and Charter LEA member staff responsible for the

operation and conduct of the Local Plan, Regular inservice training may also be provided to CAC
representatives;

9. Provide the method and forms to enable Charter LEA members to report to the AU on student
enrollment and program expenditures. Establish and maintain a student information system;

10. Provide reasonable assistance to the Charter LEA member upon request from the Charter LEA
member administration, or individual cases, including, but not limited to:

a. Complaint issues;
b. Hearing issues; and
¢. Identification of appropriate programs for specific students.

11. Perform other services reasonable and necessary to the administration and coordination of the Local
Plan;

12. Receive special education funding and distribute funds in accordance with the Charter SELPA fiscal
allocation and budget plan; and

13. Schedule a public hearing for purposes of adopting the Annual Service Plan and Annual Budget Plan.
Notwithstanding the participation in SELPA dispute resolution Procedures, the county office of education has

the responsibility to coordinate all local plans to ensure that all individuals residing within the county,
including those enrolled in programs including, but not limited to charter schools, have appropriate access to
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n a county that is different from the county of the LEA that authorizes the charter, the county office of
education where the LEA that authorized the charter is located, is responsible for ensuring that those charter
school children have appropriate access to special education programs and related services.

PROVISIONS OF THE AGREEMENT

1. Consistent with this Agreement, each Charter LEA member shall full and exclusive authority and
responsibility for classifying employment positions within their respective Charter LEA member;

2. No Charter LEA member may enter into any agreement, Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), or
other undertaking that would bind or limit independent decision-making on the same or similar
matters by any other Charter LEA member;

3. The managerial prerogatives of any participating Charter LEA member shall not be infringed upon by
any other participating Charter LEA member except upon mutual consent of an affected Charter LEA
member(s), or unless as otherwise set forth by this Agreement;

4. Any Charter LEA member may terminate its Charter SELPA membership at the end of the fiscal year
next occurring after having provided 12 months’ prior written notice as follows:

a.  Prior initial written notice of intended termination to the RLA of at least one year; and

b. Final written notice of termination to the RLA no more than six months after the Charter
LEA member’s initial notice of intended termination,

The RLA County Superintendent of Schools may terminate any Charter LEA member’s membership
at the end of the fiscal year next occurring after having provided 12 months’ prior written notice as
follows:

a.  Prior initial written notice of intended termination to the Charter LEA member of at least one
year; and

b. Final written notice of termination to the Charter LEA member no more than six months after
the RLA’s initial notice of intended termination.

5. Funding received by a Charter LEA member is subject to the elements of the allocation plan. The
allocation plan is updated on an annual basis and approved by the CAHELP JPA Governance
Council. Funding is subject to administrative fees, set-aside provisions, differentiated funding in year
one and year two, and the potential recapture provisions if funds are not spent. These details are
outlined in the allocation plan;

6. The Charter LEA members and the AU shall continue to manage and operate programs in their
respective Charter LEAS in accordance with Education Code § 56172;

7. The Charter Executive Council shall have the responsibility and right to monitor and correct any
special education matter that affects the special education local plan area. AU staff shall be
responsible for coordinating and informing the governance structure on any such matter;

The Charter LEA members and the AU will maintain responsibility for program administration for
the service they provide. All administrative requirements that govern the unit will be in effect
regarding special education services. The Superintendent, and/or Administrators of Special Education
in each Charter LEA member and in the AU will be responsible for the daily operation of their
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9. The student program placement is and shall remain the responsibility of the respective Charter LEA
member. Student admission and transfer shall be determined in accordance with the Charter LEA,
Charter SELPA, and CAHELP JPA Governance Council policies and procedures established in
accordance with the identification, assessment, instructional planning, and placement set forth in the
Local Plan. Nothing contained herein shall be interpreted as providing automatic transfer rights to
parents or students. The charter enrolling any student shall have the exclusive right to approve
placement in any other agency. Each Charter LEA of service shall have the right to determine if such
Charter LEA is able to provide a free appropriate public education for the student.

10. Supervision and other incidence of employment of special education staff will be the responsibility of

students.

11. The Charter Executive Council shall review and make allocation plan recommendations. The
allocation plan defines the distribution of state and federal funds within the Charter SELPA for the
costs of providing special education programs. The CAHELP JPA Governance Council shall approve
all changes. There is a legal requirement for a public hearing and adoption of an annual service and
budget plan. This shall be done annually by the CAHELP JPA Governance Council. This Charter
SELPA will not have any property tax allocations.

WARRANTIES AND REPRESEN TATIONS

As a condition of membership, each Charter LEA member warrants and represents that at no time during such
Charter LEA member’s membership in the Charter SELPA shall any such Charter LEA member, directly or
indirectly, provide special education funding for the benefit for a for-profit entity. All funding provided
through the Charter SELPA shall be treated as a restricted funding source to be expended only for special
education or special education scrvices, Nothing contained herein shall be interpreted as prohibiting any
Charter LEA member from expending funds for nonpublic agency or nonpublic school purposes for the
benefit of children served. There shall not be a conflict of interest between the Charter LEA member and the
Charter Management Organization (CMO).

STANDARD OF CONDUCT

Each Charter LEA member, at all times, shall conduct itself in such a manner as to act in the best interests of
all other Charter SELPA members. Charter LEA members shall not engage in any activity or enterprise which
would tend to injure or expose the Charter SELPA or any of its members to any significant risk of injury of
any kind. No Charter LEA member shall undertake to independently act on behalf of the Charter SELPA or

any of its members without express written authorization of the Charter SELPA.
RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The RLA shall not be responsible for any Charter LEA member or Charter SELPA obligations or duties of
any kind or nature except as explicitly set forth in this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

APPENDIX C: Chapter 11 — Admission of LEAs to the Charter SELPA (rev. 07/1 8) Page 7 of 8




DESERT/MOUNTAIN CHARTER SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA
17800 Highway 18 ¢ Apple Valley, CA 92307 o (760) 552-6700 o (760) 242-5363 FAX

To the fullest extent allowed by law, each Charter LEA member agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold
harmless the Charter SELPA and other Charter SELPA LEA members, the Office of the San Bernardino
County Superintendent of Schools, and each of their respective directors, officers, agency, employees, and

Further, the Charter SELPA shall be responsible for holding harmless and indemnifying the RLA for any
costs of any kind or nature arising out of, or related to, this Agreement other than as specifically contemplated
herein, except to the extent that such cost arises from the RLA’s negligence.

FULL DISCLOSURE

Except as otherwise prohibited by law, upon request by the Charter SELPA or any of its members, a Charter
SELPA member shall provide any requested information, documents, writings, or information of any sort
requested without delay.

This agreement is entered into for the 2018-19 fiscal year and, absent a new agreement or termination,
continues each year thereafter. Executed on this day of 20

CHARTER LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY (LEA) APPROVAL
Charter LEA Name:

Encore Riverside

Authorized Agent/Representative Name / Title:
Denise Griffin / Chief Executive Officer

My~ ) A
< / )/,%u\ /< ///\F
e 4

e
Date signed:

DESERT/MOUNTAIN CHARTER SELPA APPROVAL

CAHELP JPA Govemance Council Authorized Agent/Representative Name /
Title:

Jenae Holtz, Chief Executive Officer

Signature:

Date signed:
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